AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION

AND

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE.

COUNTY AND

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES.

COUNCIL 93 LOCAL 1067, AFL-CIO

JULY 1, 2001 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2004

الميدن

Negotiating Committees

BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION

Peter H. Tsaffaras, Esquire Principal Negotiator

Cynthia Denehy
Office of the Community
College Counsel

ce of the Community Quinsigamond
ege Counsel Community College

Carleton H. LaPorte Jr. Board of Higher Education

Tim C. Murphy Westfield State College Todd B. Swartz Massachusetts College of Art

Kevin J. Kiernan

Chet W. Yacek
Cape Cod
Community College

LOCAL 1067 OF COUNCIL 93 OF THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO

Howard Fain Principal Negotiator Rocco F. Richardi President – Local 1067 Massasoit Community College

Denise Brown Massachusetts College Of Liberal Arts

Nancy M. Chosta Quinsigamond Community College Karen Hathaway Treasurer – Local 1067 Bridgewater State College

Anthony M. Imperioso Bunker Hill Community College David L. Josselyn Massachusetts Bay Community College James Kefalas Salem State College

Walter Korzeniowski Springfield Technical Community College

Charles P. McGilvray Massachusetts College of Art Paul N. Melville Cape Cod Community College

Christopher J. Olsen Vice-President – Local 1067 Westfield State College Deanna Smith Secretary – Local 1067 Massasoit Community College Christopher E. Wilkins Parliamentarian – Local 1067 Bunker Hill C. C.

the

CONTENTS

	Page
Preamble	
Article 1 Recognition	5
Article 2 Scope of Agreement	6
Article 3 Definitions	7
Article 4 Management Rights	8
Article 5 Union Security	10
Article 6 Agency Service Fee	11
Article 7 Union Business	12
Article 8 Non-Discrimination and Affirmative Action	15
Article 9 Fair Practices	16
Article 10 Workweek & Work Schedule	17
Article 11 Leave	24
Article 12 Extension of Sick Leave	33
Article 13 Vacations	35
Article 14 Holidays	39
Article 15 Employee Expenses	41
Article 16 Parking	43
Article 17 Employee Compensation	44
Article 18 Health & Welfare	47
Article 19 Promotions & Filling of Vacancies	49
Article 20 Layoff and Recall	52
Article 21 Contracting Out	55
Article 22 Out Of Title Work	56
Article 23 Classification & Reclassification	57
Article 24 Class Reallocations	60
Article 25 Professional Development	61
Article 26 Safety Procedures	fat
Article 27 Probationary Employees	



PREAMBLE

This Agreement entered into by the Board of Higher Education, hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Council 93, Local 1067, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the Union, will set forth procedures for the equitable resolution of grievances, the terms of employment with respect to wages and working conditions, and means by which the parties may consult periodically on mutually perceived problems and has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious relations between the Employer and the Union and the maintenance of a work environment where employees are treated with dignity, respect and civility.

J. This

ARTICLE 1

RECOGNITION

The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purposes of establishing wages, hours, standard of productivity and performance and other terms and conditions of employment for all full-time and regular part-time employees in the bargaining units certified on January 20, 1976, and any and all amendments since that date. A regular part-time employee is defined as an employee who is expected to work 50% or more of the hours in a work year of a full-time employee in the same title.

Should any new classified classification(s) be added to the work force, the Employer shall notify the Union of such new classified classification(s). The Employer shall determine if such new classified classification(s) shall be added to the bargaining unit and the Employer shall notify the Union of its determination. If the Union disagrees with the Employer's determination, the matter may be referred to the State Labor Relations Commission by the Union, with a request that the Commission makes a determination. In the event it shall be finally adjudicated that the classified classification(s) be added to the bargaining unit, the classified classification(s) shall then be subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

The Employer will not aid, promote or finance any labor group, organization or individual which purports to engage in collective bargaining, or negotiate with any individual unit member or make any agreement with any individual for the purpose of undermining the Union or changing any condition in this Agreement.

The Employer agrees to apply applicable provisions of this Agreement to those employees who receive all contractual benefits, whose funding source is derived from institute, grant or contract funds and who perform the functions of those positions covered by this Agreement to the extent that the terms of their respective institute, grant or contract funding source and the level of funding thereunder so allow, as determined by the CEO.

ARTICLE 2 SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

Section 1.

The parties agree that this Agreement in all respects supplants and replaces all particular provisions of the following General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and Rules and Regulations thereto and any future rules and regulations promulgated thereunder namely: the Second Paragraph of Section twenty-eight of Chapter Seven (Red Book); Section twenty-four A; Paragraphs (4) and (5) (Gray Book), formerly paragraphs (5) and (6) of Section forty-five; paragraphs (1), (4) and (10) of Section forty-six, and Section fifty-three of Chapter Thirty; Sections Thirty to forty-two, inclusive, of Chapter One Hundred and Forty-Nine.

Section 2.

The parties agree that during the negotiations of the terms of this Agreement, they were afforded the unrestricted right to negotiate all matters covered by Chapter 150E; that they shall be governed exclusively by and limited to the terms and provisions of this Agreement and that neither shall have any other obligation or be obligated to negotiate with respect to any matter pertaining to wages, hours, or other terms and conditions of employment whether or not specifically included in this Agreement or discussed during the negotiations preceding the execution of this Agreement.

Section 3.

No addition to, alteration, modification, or waiver of any term, provision, covenant or condition or restriction in this Agreement shall be valid, binding or of any force or effect unless mutually agreed to, in writing, by the parties to this Agreement.

Section 4.

SIF

Any prior Agreements covering employees covered by this Agreement shall be terminated and of no effect upon the effective date of this Agreement and shall be superseded by this Agreement except for those benefits that are specifically continued into the new Agreement by mutual consent.

Sve

ARTICLE 3 DEFINITIONS

- 1. BOARD The term "Board" shall mean the Board of Higher Education.
- 2. <u>CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE CAMPUS (CEO)</u> The term "Chief Executive Officer of the Campus", hereinafter in this Agreement "CEO", shall mean the President of a State College or Community College, or his/her designee.
- 3. <u>CHIEF PERSONNEL OFFICER</u> The term "Chief Personnel Officer" shall mean the Director of Human Resources/Personnel or any individual, however entitled, carrying out the duties of the aforementioned position.
- 4. <u>DAY</u> Except as is otherwise provided in this Agreement, the term "day" shall mean a calendar day inclusive of any Saturday, Sunday, skeleton day or holiday.
- 5. **EMPLOYER** The term "Employer" shall mean the Board of Higher Education.
- 6. <u>IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR</u> The term "Immediate Supervisor" shall mean the immediate work supervisor, designated by the CEO of that College or designee, who may or may not be a unit member.
- 7. <u>PUBLIC SAFETY</u> The term "Public Safety" shall mean the department to which individuals holding the position of Campus Police Officer I, Campus Police Officer II, Institutional Security Officer II, Institutional Security Officer III are assigned. The parties recognize that this term may not be used to identify this department at individual colleges.
- 8. <u>SENIORITY</u> Except as is otherwise provided in this Agreement, the term "Seniority" shall be defined as length of continuous full-time equivalent service as a full-time or regular part-time employee, regardless of source of funds, since the last date of hire by the College.
- 9. <u>TOUR OF DUTY</u> The term "Tour of Duty" shall mean that period of time regularly assigned to an employee as his/her regular daily work period.
- 10. <u>UNION</u> The term "Union" shall mean the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees. AFL-CIO.
- 11. WORKDAY For full-time unit members, the term "Work Day" shall mean 7.50 hours for Unit members in Unit I and shall mean 8.00 hours for Unit members in Unit II.
- 12. WORK WEEK The term "Work Week" shall mean a calendar week, i.e., a week extending from Sunday to Saturday inclusive.

27V2/

ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The Union and the Board of Higher Education and/or the Administration of the several Colleges agree that the provisions of this Agreement shall be expressly limited to conditions of employment covered by this Agreement, and no provision shall be construed to restrain the College from the management of its operations, including but not limited to:

- 1. the determination of the standards of service to be provided and standards of productivity and performance of its employees;
- 2. the right to determine the size and composition of the work force;
- 3. to determine educational and work standards;
- 4. to decide the location and number of its offices, administrative buildings, dormitories, facilities, and physical plant;
- 5. to determine the quantity and type of equipment to be used in its operation;
- 6. the speed of such equipment and the manning requirements of such equipment or any job;
- 7. to determine the content of job classification;
- 8. to promulgate reasonable rules and regulations;
- 9. to select supervisory and managerial employees;
- 10. to discipline, demote and discharge employees;
- 11. to contract out work; to control and determine the state of products which may be used by employees;
- 12. to determine the time for work, staffing pattern and work area;
- 13. to determine the method and place of performing work including the right to determine that College's work force shall not perform certain work;
- 14. to transfer employees from one administrative area to another;
- 15. to schedule work, shifts, and work breaks;
- 16. to determine the method of performing work including the introduction of improved methods and facilities:
- 17. to determine whether such work shall be performed by bargaining unit employees or others:
- 18. to fix standards of quality and quantity for work to be done;
- 19. to determine whether any part or the whole of its operations shall continue to operate:
- 20. to establish, to change, or abolish any service:
- 21. to maintain order and efficiency in its facilities and operations:
- 22. to determine the duties of employees:
- 23. to hire, layoff, assign, transfer, retrench;
- 24. to determine the qualifications of employees:

itt

In.

- 25. to promote employees;
- 26. to upgrade, allocate, reallocate, or classify employees;
- 27. to determine the starting and quitting times:
- 28. to require overtime; and,
- 29. All other rights and prerogatives including those exercised unilaterally in the past, subject to such regulations and restrictions governing the exercise of these rights as expressly provided in this Agreement, statute or law.

Any management right set out in this Article shall be subject to the Grievance and Arbitration provisions herein.

0.78/

ARTICLE 5 UNION SECURITY

Section 1.

The Union shall have the exclusive right to the checkoff and transmittal of Union dues on behalf of each employee.

Section 2.

An employee may consent in writing to the authorization of the deduction of Union dues from his/her wages and to the designation of the Union as the recipient thereof. Such consent shall be in a form acceptable to the Employer/Union and shall bear the signature of the employee. An employee may withdraw his/her Union dues checkoff authorization by giving at least sixty (60) day's notice in writing to the Personnel Office and the Secretary/Treasurer of the Union.

Section 3.

An employee may consent in writing to the authorization of the deduction of any agency service fee from his/her wages and to the designation of the Union as the recipient thereof. Such consent shall be in a form acceptable to the Employer/Union and shall bear the signature of the employee. An employee may withdraw his/her agency service fee authorization by giving at least sixty (60) day's notice in writing to the Personnel Office and the Secretary/Treasurer of the Union.

Section 4.

The College shall deduct dues or an agency service fee from the pay of employees who request such deduction in accordance with this Article and transmit such funds in accordance with departmental policy to the Treasurer of the Union together with a list of employees whose dues or agency service fees are transmitted, provided that the College is satisfied by such evidence that it may require that the Treasurer of the Union has given to the Union a bond in a form approved by the College for the faithful performance of his/her duties, in a sum and with such agency or securities as are satisfactory to the College.

di-

ARTICLE 6 AGENCY SERVICE FEE

Section 1.

Each employee who elects not to join or maintain membership in the Union shall be required to pay as a condition of employment, beginning thirty (30) days following the commencement of his/her employment, an agency service fee to the Union in an amount that is equal to the amount required to become and remain a member in good standing of the exclusive bargaining agent.

Section 2.

This Article shall not become operative until this Agreement has been formally executed, pursuant to a vote of a majority of all employees in that bargaining unit present and voting.

Section 3.

The Union shall reimburse the Employer for any expenses incurred as a result of being ordered to reinstate an employee terminated at the request of the Union for not paying the agency service fee. The Union will intervene in and defend any administrative or court litigation concerning the propriety of such termination for failure to pay the agency service fee. In such litigation, the Employer shall have no obligation to defend the termination.

Section 4.

Disputes between the parties concerning this Article shall be resolved in accordance with the grievance procedure contained in this Agreement. In the event such a dispute is submitted to arbitration, the arbitrator shall have no power or authority to order the Employer to pay such agency service fee on behalf of any employee. If the arbitrator decides that an employee has failed to pay or authorize the payment of the agency service fee in accordance with this Article, the only remedy shall be the termination of the employment of such employee if the employee continues to refuse to pay or authorize payment of the required agency service fee after having sufficient time to do so.

Section 5.

It is specifically agreed that the Employer assumes no obligation, financial or otherwise, arising out of the provisions of this Article, and the Union hereby agrees it will indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from any claims, actions or proceedings by an employee arising from the termination of an employee hereunder.

H

Jan.

ARTICLE 7 UNION BUSINESS

Section 1. Union Representatives

Union Staff representatives shall be permitted to have access to the premises of the College for the performance of official Union business, provided that there is no disruption of operations. Requests for such access will be made in advance and will not be unreasonably denied. The Union will furnish the College with a list of staff representatives and their areas of jurisdiction.

Section 2. Union Officials

- A. Except as hereinafter provided. Union business shall be conducted by Union officials on off-duty hours. Designated Union officials shall be permitted to have time off without loss of pay for the investigation and processing of grievances and arbitrations. Grievants shall be permitted to have time off without loss of pay for processing their grievances through the contractual grievance procedure, except that for class action grievances, no more than three (3) grievants shall be granted such leave. Requests for all such time off shall be made in advance and shall not be unreasonably denied. Union officials and representatives shall conduct Union business in a manner, which shall not be disruptive to the College's operations or any employees work. The Union will furnish the College with a list of the designated Union officials.
- B. The President of the Local, for the purpose of attending meetings at other Colleges in the State and Community College System, shall be granted release time without loss of wages or benefits not to exceed two (2) days each month. Such leaves shall be approved in advance by the CEO.

Section 3. Paid Leave of Absence

- A. Leaves of absence without loss of wages, benefits or other privileges may be granted to elected delegates of the Union to attend conventions of the State, Regional and Parent Organizations. Such leave will require the prior approval of the CEO. Persons designated as alternate delegates shall not be granted paid leave of absence to attend such conventions.
- B. Leaves of absence without loss of wages, benefits or other privileges may be granted to the Union negotiating committee members for attendance at negotiation sessions with the Employer and related Union caucuses. Such leave will require the prior approval of the CEO.
- C. Leaves of absence without loss of wages, benefits or other privileges may be granted for attendance at joint labor management meetings. Such leave will require the prior approval of the CEO.

int

D. Leaves of absence without loss of wages, benefits or other privileges may be granted to Executive Board members for attendance at ten (10) Executive Board meetings per year. Such leave will require the prior approval of the CEO. The number of paid attendees and the duration of the meeting shall not exceed past practice.

Section 4. Unpaid Leave of Absence

Upon request of the Union, an employee may be granted a leave of absence without pay to perform full-time official duties on behalf of the Union. Such leave of absence shall be for a period of up to one year and may be extended for one or more additional periods of one year or less at the request of the Union. Advance approval of the CEO is required for all such leaves of absence or extensions thereof.

Section 5. Attendance at Hearings

- A. Designated Union officials may be granted leave of absence without loss of wages, benefits or other privileges to attend hearings before the Legislature and State agencies concerning matters of importance to the Union and the Employer. Such leave will require prior approval of the CEO.
- B. Witnesses called by the Union to testify at a Step IV hearing or in an arbitration proceeding (Step V) may be granted time off without loss of benefits or other privileges (not including wages).
- C. All leave granted under this section shall require prior approval of the CEO.

Section 6. Union Use of Premises

- A. The Union shall be permitted to use the same or similar facilities of the College for the transaction of Union business during working hours which have been used in the past for such purpose, and to have reasonable use of the College facilities during off-duty hours for Union meetings subject to appropriate compensation if required by law. This section shall not be interpreted to grant an employee the right to carry on Union business during his her own working hours not granted elsewhere in this contract.
- B. Unit members shall continue to be permitted access to the same or similar facilities as approved and provided in the past.

Section 7. Bulletin Boards

The Union may post notices on designated bulletin boards or an adequate part thereof in places and locations where notices are usually posted by the College for employees to read. All notices shall be on Union stationery, signed by an official of the Union, and shall only be used to notify employees of matters pertaining to Union affairs. The notices may remain posted for a reasonable period of time. No material shall be posted which is inflammatory, profane or obscene, or defamatory of the Commonwealth or

its representatives, or which constitutes election campaign material for or against any person, organization or faction thereof.

Section 8. Employer Provision of Information

The College shall be required to provide the Union with the following information:

- 1. Every month, a list of all new employees in the bargaining unit and their date of employment and classification.
- 2. Every month, a list of all unit employees who have had a change in status.
- 3. Every month, a list of all unit employees not on dues or agency fee checkoff and who are off payroll for any reason the week of deduction.
- 4. A list of unit employees who withdrew checkoff authorizations within two months of such withdrawal.
- 5. Every six months, a list of all unit employees and their title and last date of hire. Where the College has been providing this or other information to the Union at more frequent time intervals, the information shall continue to be furnished at such intervals.

Section 9. Orientation

Where the College provides an orientation program for new employees, one-half hour shall be allotted to the Union and to the new unit employees during which time a Union representative may discuss the Union with the employees.

Where the College does not provide an orientation program for new employees, a forty-five (45) minute period shall be allotted to the Union and to the new unit employees that month during which time a Union representative may discuss the Union with the employees. Such meeting shall not take place at the new employee's assigned work location.

2.7

ARTICLE 8 NON-DISCRIMINATION AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

Section 1.

The parties agree not to discriminate in any way against employees covered by this Agreement on account of race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation, gender, age, mental or physical handicap or veteran status.

Section 2.

The parties agree that when the effects of employment practices, regardless of their intent, discriminate against any group of people on the basis of race, religion, age, gender, national origin, mental or physical handicap or veteran status, specific positive and aggressive measures must be taken to redress the effects of past discrimination, to eliminate present and future discrimination, and to ensure equal opportunity in the areas of hiring, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, layoff or termination, rate of compensation, and in-service or apprenticeship training programs. Therefore, the parties acknowledge the need for positive and aggressive affirmative action.

Section 3.

This Article shall be in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws.

Section 4.

Any matters concerning this Article shall be subject to the Campus Affirmative Action Grievance Procedure and not the grievance and arbitration procedures provided in Article 29 of this Agreement.

Cross of

ARTICLE 9 FAIR PRACTICES

Section 1.

The Council and/or the Union recognize and affirm their commitment to the policy of non-discrimination with regard to race, color, religious creed, national origin, age, religious affiliation (if any), gender, marital status, handicap status or sexual orientation. The parties agree that no employee shall be subjected to sexual harassment.

Section 2.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any unit member rights he/she may have under applicable laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and its regulations or other applicable provisions of state or federal law.

Section 3.

The Union shall represent all persons in the bargaining unit without regard to race, color, religious creed, national origin, age, religious affiliation (if any), gender, marital status, handicap status, sexual orientation or participation in the activities of the Union.

Section 4.

1-1-

The terms of this Agreement shall not be applied in an arbitrary or capricious manner.

ARTICLE 10 WORKWEEK AND WORK SCHEDULE

Section 1. Hours, Workday and Workweek

- Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, the regular hours of work for all full-time employees of Unit I (Clerical and Technical) shall be thirtyseven and one-half (37 ½) hours per week, excluding meal periods. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, the regular hours of work for all full-time employees of Unit II (Maintenance and Security) shall be forty (40) hours per week, excluding meal periods. For Unit II employees who are assigned to a second or third shift and who are eligible to receive a shift differential, the regular hours of work shall be forty (40) hours per week including a thirty (30) minute meal period. All such employees shall take their meal period at the location/site to which they are assigned and shall be on call at all times during the meal period. For Unit II employees who are uniformed members of the Campus Police/Safety/Security Department or whose duties require a watch in a power plant or similar facility, the regular hours of work shall be forty (40) hours per week including a thirty (30) minute meal period. All such employees shall take their meal period at the location/site to which they are assigned and shall be on call at all times during the meal period.
- B. When the CEO desires to change the regular work schedule of an employee, the affected employee shall receive at least twelve (12) working days written notice of such contemplated change, except in cases of emergency involving the protection of the property of the College or involving the health and safety of those persons whose care and/or custody have been entrusted to the College.
 - 1. Where practicable, assignments in shift, days off, or work location with no change in job title and no change in grade, shall be filled by qualified volunteers in order of seniority. If there are no volunteers, assignments shall be made in inverse order of seniority with the affected employee having priority to return to the original shift, days off, or work location.
 - 2. The work schedule, both starting times and quitting times, of employees shall be posted at least ten (10) working days in advance on a bulletin board at each work location and also made available to employees and Union Stewards.
- C. To the extent practicable, the normal work week shall consist of five (5) consecutive days. Monday through Friday, with the regular hours of work each day to be consecutive except for meal periods. Similarly, to the extent practicable, employees in continuous operations shall receive two (2) consecutive days off in each seven (7) day period. This sub-section shall not apply to employees in authorized flexible hours programs. The starting and

6.24

- quitting time for each employee shall be uniform and consistent unless changed in accordance with the provisions of this Article. Regularly scheduled work shifts shall have at least fifteen (15) hours between quitting and starting time.
- D. Each employee shall be required to record his attendance in accordance with procedures which may be established in writing from time to time by the CEO. Thirty (30) days prior to any change in the existing method of recording attendance the CEO will notify the Union of such change and will meet and confer with the Union to discuss such change.
- E. Employees wishing to swap their days off in a given week may do so by mutual agreement of the employees involved with the consent of their supervisor and the approval of the Chief Personnel Officer or designee.

Section 2. Overtime

- A. An employee shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half his/her regular rate of pay for authorized overtime work performed in excess of thirty-seven and a half (37 ½) hours per week for Unit I employees and forty (40) hours per week for Unit II employees.
- B. Compensatory time off, computed at time and one-half in lieu of overtime compensation may be authorized by the CEO upon the request of the employee.
- C. The CEO shall not, for the purpose for avoiding overtime, curtail or modify the scheduled hours of an employee during the remainder of the work week in which the employee has previously worked hours beyond his/her normally scheduled work day.
- D. There shall be no duplication or pyramiding of the premium pay for overtime work provided for in this Agreement.
- With the exception of paid sick leave, all time for which an employee is on E. full pay status (personal leave, vacation leave, etc.) shall be considered time worked for the purpose of calculating overtime compensation. Notwithstanding the above, an employee who uses sick leave during the same work week (Sunday through Saturday) in which he she works overtime shall have the opportunity to retroactively substitute up to three (3) shifts of sick leave per fiscal year with either accrued compensatory time, holiday, personal or vacation leave though not on the calendar day before or after working overtime or a detail. The retroactive substitution of any leave for sick leave shall occur only upon the completion and submittal of a Request for Substitution of Sick Leave Form (Appendix A) by the employee. Any such form shall be completed and submitted not later than ten (10) days after the date for which such substitution is requested. Further, not more than two (2) days of sick leave may be counted towards such overtime calculation if the employee submits satisfactory medical evidence of the use of such sick leave.

S. S.

girt

The use of any such sick leave shall occur only upon the completion and submittal of a Request for Substitution of Sick Leave Form (Appendix A) to which the satisfactory medical evidence shall be attached. Any such form shall be completed and submitted with satisfactory medical evidence attached not later than ten (10) days after the date upon which such sick leave was used.

- F. Overtime shall be distributed as equitably and impartially as practicable among employees in each work location who ordinarily perform such work in the normal course of their workweek. Department heads and Union representatives at each location shall work out procedures for implementing this policy of distributing overtime work. Such policies shall be approved by the CEO.
- G. An employee may not refuse to perform compulsory overtime except for reasons acceptable to the CEO when it is determined by the CEO that the work must be performed on an overtime period or involves the protection of persons or property of the College. Prior to invoking compulsory overtime, if safety and security permits, the CEO will solicit volunteers using the procedures developed by the College in Paragraph F of this Section 2. If volunteers are not available, the CEO will order in an employee to perform such work in the order of inverse seniority. Failure on the part of an employee to work an overtime assignment as described above without such reason shall be wrongful and may result in the imposition of disciplinary measures.
- H. Upon the request of the employee, the concurrence of the Departmental Supervisor, and the prior approval of the Chief Personnel Officer, an employee may work overtime. All such requests for permission to work voluntary overtime shall be in writing and shall contain both the maximum number of hours to be worked and the starting and ending dates of the time period during which such hours shall be worked. Voluntary overtime may be granted only for the continuation by the employee of tasks normally assigned to said employee and which fall within the employee's classification specification.

The implementation of this sub-section H shall not be subject to the provisions of Article 10. Section 5 of the Agreement. Further, grievances involving the interpretation or application of the provisions of this sub-section H may be processed through Step IV of the grievance procedure set forth in Article 29 of this Agreement but shall not be processed to Step V.

- I. The CEO shall make every effort to make payment for overtime work no later than the first payroll period following the payroll period of the overtime work. but in no event later than the second payroll period thereafter.
- J. Overtime worked by members of the bargaining unit shall be posted or made available on a monthly basis.

المدن

K. The provisions of this Section shall not apply to employees on full travel status.

Section 3. Meal Period

A meal period shall be scheduled as close to the middle of the shift as possible considering the needs of the College and the needs of the employee.

Section 4. Rest Periods

A rest period of a maximum of fifteen (15) minutes shall be given to employees in each one-half (1/2) tour of duty.

Section 5. Call/Report-Back

An employee who has left his/her place of employment after having completed work on his/her regular tour of duty and reports back to work prior to the commencement of his/her next scheduled tour of duty shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours pay at his/her regular hourly overtime rate. This section shall not apply to any employee who is called in to start his/her shift early and who continues to work that shift.

Section 6. Stand By

- A. An employee who is ordered by the department head to be available on a stand-by basis to report to duty when necessary shall be reimbursed at a rate not to exceed fifteen (15) dollars for such stand-by period.
- B. The stand-by period shall be fifteen (15) hours in duration for any night stand-by duty and shall be nine (9) hours in duration for any daytime stand-by.
- C. Stand-by duty shall mean that a department head has ordered any employee to be immediately available for duty upon receipt of a message to report to work. If any employee assigned to stand-by duty is not available to report to duty when called, no stand-by pay shall be paid to the employee for the period and the employee may be subject to disciplinary action.
- D. Any employee who has been ordered by a department head to carry a beeper or other type of electronic communications equipment, after his/her normal tour of duty, shall be considered to be on stand-by, and shall be paid accordingly.
- E. If required to report for duty from stand-by status, the employee shall be paid at the appropriate overtime pay rate.

Section 7. Shift Differential

A. Employees of the Commonwealth rendering service on a second or third shift as hereinafter defined shall receive a shift differential of seventy-five cents (\$0.75) per hour for each hour worked.

C NE

- B. For the purpose of this section only, a second shift shall be one that commences at 1:00 p.m. or after and ends no later than 2:00 a.m., and a third shift shall be one that commences at 9:00 p.m. or after and ends no later than 9:00 a.m.
- C. The above hourly shift differential shall be paid in addition to regular salary for eligible employees when their entire workday is on a second or third shift. Eligible employees who are required to work a second or third shift or any portion thereof on an overtime basis, replacing a worker who normally works such second or third shift will receive an hourly differential pursuant to Paragraph A of this section.
- D. For employees who are required to work a second or third shift as governed by Paragraph C of this Section, overtime shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half of the regular salary rate for the number of hours in excess of thirty-seven and a-half (37 ½) hours per week for Unit I employees and forty (40) hours per week for Unit II employees worked on such second or third shift. The shift differential shall be added before the computation of the overtime rate.

Section 8. Weekend Differential

- A. Effective July 1, 2001, employees of the Commonwealth rendering service on a weekend shift as hereinafter defined shall receive a weekend differential of 25 cents (\$0.25) per hour for each hour worked.
- B. For the purpose of this section, a weekend shift shall be defined as a shift that commences on or after 9:00 p.m. on Friday and concludes on or before 2:00 a.m. on Monday.
- C. The above hourly weekend differential shall be paid in addition to regular salary for eligible employees when their entire workday is on a weekend shift. Eligible employees who are required to work a weekend shift, or any portion thereof, on an overtime basis, replacing a worker who normally works such weekend shift, will receive an hourly differential pursuant to paragraph A of this section.
- D. For employees who are required to work a weekend shift pursuant to paragraph C of this section, overtime shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half of the regular salary rate for the number of hours in excess of thirty-seven and a-half (37 ½) hours per week for Unit I employees; and, in excess of forty (40) hours per week for Unit II employees. The weekend differential shall be added before the computation of the overtime rate.

Section 9. Paid Detail

14

A. For the purpose of this section, a detail shall mean a work assignment outside of normal working hours that is paid for by an outside agency or organization which is not an organization or department of the college.

- B. Employees who work paid details shall be compensated at the rate of time and a half (1 ½) of their regular rate. Such work performed on a holiday as defined in Article 14 shall be compensated at a rate of not less than time and one-half (1 ½). There shall be a minimum of four (4) hours pay for each such paid detail.
- C. The College shall require a notice to the College of cancellation of a detail from the requester of the detail at least four (4) hours prior to the time the detail is scheduled to begin. If the requester of the detail fails to notify the College within the above specified limit, any employee assigned to that detail shall be entitled to four (4) hours pay at the overtime rate.

Section 10. Clean-Up

Employees working in jobs which are especially dirty or which require cleanup for reasons of safety or health shall be granted up to a maximum of ten (10) minutes, depending on the need to be used as personal clean-up time prior to meal period and at the end of a work shift.

Section 11. Miscellaneous Provisions

- A. An employee shall normally be assigned duties by his/her regular supervisor.
- B. Each employee shall have access to all materials, equipment, foods, work areas and telephones necessary to perform duties and as required to take care of emergency situations.
- C. The College shall enter into full discussion with the Union prior to engaging in on the job time-study projects.
- D. The College shall endeavor to supply each employee with adequate locker facilities convenient to his/her work area.
- E. Payment shall be made available to employees as early as possible on Fridays, or before.
- F. No managerial employee, as defined by the Massachusetts Public Employee Collective Bargaining Law (Chapter 150E), who is excluded from the terms of this Agreement, shall perform the work of any employee covered by this Agreement, except in the case of an emergency, excessive absence of employees from work, lack of an adequate number of employees or for the purpose of providing instruction or training of employees.

Section 12. Flexible Hours Program

Campus Level Labor/Management Committees established in Section 2 of Article 32, shall consider the feasibility of instituting a flexible hours program on their campus.

2.12

Section 13. Compensatory Time

No employee may have more than one hundred (100) hours of accrued compensatory time to his/her credit.

Section 14. Inclement Weather and Other Closings

A. General Application

The provisions of this Section 13 are of application at all times during the term of this Agreement (i.e. Academic Semesters, Academic Vacations, and Inter-Sessions) and include openings, closings and cancellations where non-essential employees are excused with pay.

B. Adverse Weather Conditions

In the event that classes or other activities are cancelled due to adverse weather conditions, designated essential personnel shall be required to report for work during the duration of the cancellation. (It is the intention of the parties that not all personnel will be declared essential.)

C. Other Closings

In the event that a circumstance arises that requires a work area (i.e. a building) to be closed for health, safety or other reasons, including conditions of extreme cold, heat or humidity, non-essential employees at the affected work location will be dismissed with pay for the balance of the shift.

D. Compensation

Employees who are designated essential and who either report to work in accordance with Paragraph B above or remain at work in accordance with Paragraph C above shall receive compensatory time (based upon actual number of hours worked) in addition to the daily pay to which they would otherwise be entitled.

An employee working at a rate greater than straight time shall not be eligible for compensatory time.

- E. An employee who is not scheduled to work a shift or who is not at work due to the authorized use of any leave (including but not limited to bereavement, personal, sick or vacation) shall receive no additional compensation as a result of any adverse weather or other closing which occurs during such shift or period of leave.
- F. Between October 1st and October 15th of each year, an employee shall receive written notification if he/she is designated as an essential employee. The Union shall be provided with the name of each employee who is designated as essential.
- G. All decisions regarding this Section 13 shall fall within the sole discretion of the CEO.

ARTICLE 11 LEAVE

Section 1. Sick Leave

- A. A full-time employee shall accumulate sick leave with pay credits at the rate of 9.375 hours for Unit members in Unit I and 10 hours for Unit members in Unit II for each full month of employment. The annual total shall be 112.50 hours for Unit members in Unit I and 120 hours for Unit members in Unit II. An employee on leave with pay (excluding an employee on an extension of sick leave in accordance with Article 12) shall accumulate sick leave credits.
- B. A regular part-time employee shall accumulate sick leave credits in the same proportion that his/her part-time service bears to full-time service.
- C. Sick leave shall be granted at the discretion of the CEO, and shall not be unreasonably denied, to an employee only under the following conditions:
 - 1. When an employee cannot perform his/her duties because he or she is incapacitated by personal illness or injury;
 - 2. When the spouse, child or parent of either an employee or his/her spouse, or a relative living in the immediate household of an employee, is ill, the employee may utilize sick leave credits up to a maximum of 75 hours for Unit members in Unit I and 80 hours for Unit members in Unit II per calendar year except in cases of demonstrated medical emergency or life threatening/terminal illness in which case an employee may use up to 112.50 hours for Unit members in Unit I and 120 hours for Unit members in Unit II:
 - 3. When through exposure to contagious disease, the presence of the employee at his/her work location would jeopardize the health of others;
 - 4. To keep appointments with health care professionals. In such instances the normal requirement of advance notice will be at least five (5) working days. However, the parties recognize that an unforeseen complication may arise from a regularly scheduled appointment with such a health care professional; and
 - 5. An employee who becomes a foster parent may use up to 37.50 hours for Unit members in Unit I and 40 hours for Unit_members in Unit II for the purpose of transitioning the child into the foster family and/or for attending official meetings with the Department of Social Services related to becoming a foster parent.
 - D. A full-time employee on leave without pay and/or absent without pay shall not accrue sick leave credit for that portion of time that he/she is on leave without pay.
 - E. Where the CEO has reason to believe that sick leave is being abused; he/she may require the submission of satisfactory medical evidence from a qualified

NV V

health care professional. Such request shall be made within seven (7) working days of either the date of suspected abuse or return of the employee, whichever is later. Failure of an employee to present such satisfactory medical evidence within seven (7) working days after such request has been made by the CEO, may, at the discretion of the CEO, result in the absence being treated as absence without pay.

Satisfactory medical evidence shall consist of a signed statement by a licensed Physician, Physician's Assistant, Nurse Practitioner, Chiropractor, or Dentist that he/she has personally examined the employee and shall contain the nature of the illness or injury, unless identified as being of a confidential nature; a statement that the employee was unable to perform his or her duties to the specific illness or injury on the days in question; and, the prognosis for the employee's return to work. In cases where the employee is absent due to a family or household illness as defined in Section 1, Paragraph C, Section 2 of this Article, satisfactory medical evidence shall consist of a signed statement by medical personnel mentioned above indicating that the person in question has been determined to be seriously ill and needing care on the days in question. A medical statement provided pursuant to this Article shall be on the letterhead of the attending physician or medical provider as mentioned above and shall list an address and telephone number.

The CEO may, at his/her discretion, grant the employee reasonable time during the employee's regular tour of duty, if necessary, to seek the satisfactory medical evidence as required above.

- F. The CEO may require that an employee be examined by a physician of the employee's choosing and at the employee's expense, following absence by reason of illness or injury for more than ten (10) consecutive working days. The sole purpose of such examination shall be to determine the employee's fitness to return to his/her regularly assigned duties.

 An employee absent by reason of illness or injury for more than ten (10)
 - An employee absent by reason of illness or injury for more than ten (10) consecutive working days shall provide the CEO with reasonable notice of his/her intent to return.
- G. Sick leave must be charged against unused sick leave credits in units of one-half (1/2) hour or full hours, but in no event may the sick leave credits used be less than the actual time off.
- H. Any employee having no sick leave credits, who is absent due to illness, shall be placed, unless otherwise notified by the employee, on personal leave; if no personal leave credits, then on vacation leave. If no sick leave credits or other accumulated leave credits are available, the employee shall be placed on an unpaid leave of absence. Such leave shall be charged on the same basis as provided in subsection G.
- 1. An employee who is reinstated or re-employed after an absence of less than three (3) years shall be credited with his/her sick leave credits at the

Air

termination of his/her prior employment. A person whose employment by the Commonwealth is uninterrupted shall retain all accrued sick leave credits. Sick leave earned in towns, cities, counties, districts, the federal government, etc. shall not be transferred to state service.

J. A part-time employee on leave without pay and/or absent without pay shall not accrue sick leave credit for that portion of time that he/she is on leave without pay.

- K. Notification of absences under this Article must be given to the designated representative of the CEO at least one hour prior to the beginning of the scheduled tour of duty. If such notification is not made, such absence may, at the discretion of the CEO be applied to absence without pay. In circumstances beyond the control of the employee such notification shall be made as early as possible on the day of absence. Within ninety (90) days after execution of this Agreement, and upon any change in the method of reporting during the term of the Agreement, the Chief Personnel Officer shall notify each employee of the method by which such employee shall report such absence.
- L. No employee shall be entitled to sick leave under the provisions of this Article in excess of the accumulated sick leave credits due such employee, excluding any extended Sick Leave provisions.
- M. Employees whose service with the Employer is terminated shall not be entitled to any compensation in lieu of accumulated sick leave credits.
- N. Employees who retire shall be paid twenty (20) percent of the value of their unused accrued sick leave at the time of their retirement. It is understood that any such payment will not change the employee's pension benefits.
- O. If, at the time of death of an employee, said employee was eligible to retire and receive a pension from the Commonwealth, then said employee shall be paid twenty (20) percent of the value of unused accumulated sick leave to his/her credit at the time of death, provided that no monetary or other allowance has already been made therefore. It is understood that any such payment will not change the employee's pension benefits.

The CEO shall authorize payment of such compensation upon the establishment of a valid claim therefore, in the following order of precedence;

First; to the surviving beneficiary, or beneficiaries, if any, lawfully designated by the person under the State Employees' Retirement System; Second: if there be no such designated beneficiary, to the estate of the deceased.

P. Sick leave credits earned by an employee following a return to duty after a leave without pay or absence without pay shall not be applied to such period of time.

21/2

Q. When an employee is separated from the payroll because he/she has exhausted his/her sick leave, the College shall furnish the necessary forms for requesting group insurance coverage on a current premium basis.

Section 2. Paid Personal Leave

Beginning on January 1, 2000 and on each January 1st thereafter, full-time employees will be credited annually with 22.50 hours of paid personal leave for Unit members in Unit I and 24 hours of paid personal leave for Unit members in Unit II which must be taken during the following twelve (12) months, at a time or times requested by the employee and approved by the CEO. Any paid personal leave not taken by any December 31st will be forfeited by the employee. Personal leave days for regular part-time employees will be granted on a pro-rata basis. Personal leave may be available in units of one-half (½) hour and may be used in conjunction with vacation leave. Full-time employees hired or promoted into the bargaining unit on or after the beginning of a calendar year will be credited with personal leave days in accordance with the following schedule:

DATE OF HIRE/	PERSONAL LEAVE	
PROMOTION INTO UNIT	HOURS CREDITED	
	<u>UNIT I</u>	<u>UNIT II</u>
January 1 to March 31	22.50	24
April 1 to July 31	15	16
July 1 to September 30	7.50	8 -
October 1 to December 31	0	0

Section 3. Bereavement Leave

Upon evidence, satisfactory to the CEO, of the death of a spouse, child, step-child, parent, step-parent, brother, step-brother, sister, step-sister, grandparent, grandchild or parent of a spouse or person living in the immediate household, an employee shall be entitled to leave without loss of pay for a maximum of four (4) consecutive working days.

In the event of the death of an employee's son-in-law or daughter-in-law or of the spouse's brother, sister, grandparent or grandchild, a maximum of two (2) consecutive working days shall be available for use by an employee.

In the event that the interment of, or memorial service for, any of the above-named relatives is to occur at a time beyond the bereavement leave granted, the employee may request to defer one of the days to the later date. Such request shall be made at the time of notification to the CEO of the death of one of the above named relatives, and may be granted at the discretion of the CEO.

Pro

1/11

Section 4. Voting Leave

An employee whose hours of work preclude him/her from voting in a town, city, state or national election shall upon application, be granted a voting leave with pay, not to exceed two (2) hours, for the sole purpose of voting in the election.

Section 5. Civic Duty Leave

- A. Employees summoned for jury duty will be granted a leave of absence with pay for time lost from their regular work schedule while on said jury duty upon presentation of the appropriate summons to the CEO by the employee.
- B. An employee who receives jury duty fees for jury service upon presentation of the appropriate court certificate of service shall either:
 - 1. retain such jury fees in lieu of pay for the period of jury service if the jury fees exceed his/her regular rate of compensation for the period involved; or
 - 2. remit to the College the jury fees if less than his/her regular rate of compensation for the period involved.
- C. Jury fees, for the purpose of this Article, shall be the per diem rate paid for jury duty by the Court, not including the expenses reimbursed for travel, meals, rooms or incidentals.
- D. An employee summoned as a witness in court on behalf of the Commonwealth, or any town, city or county of the Commonwealth or on behalf of the Federal Government, shall be granted court leave with pay upon filing of the appropriate notice of service with his/her CEO except that this Section shall not apply to an employee who is also in the employ of any town, city or county of the Commonwealth or in the employ of the Federal Government or any private employer and who is summoned on a matter arising from that employment.
- E. Any fees paid to an employee for court services performed during a vacation period may be retained by the employee. The employee shall retain expenses paid for travel, meals, rooms, etc.
- F. An employee on court leave who has been excused by the proper court authority shall report to his/her official duty station if such interruption in court services will permit four or more consecutive hours of employment. Court leave shall not affect any employment rights of the individual.
- G. No court leave shall be granted when the employee is the defendant or is engaged in personal litigation, unless such litigation arises out of the legitimate performance of his/her assigned responsibilities.

Section 6. Military Leave

An employee shall be entitled, during the time of his/her service in the Armed Forces of the Commonwealth, under Section 38, 40, 41, 42, or 60 of C. 33 of

Dr. o

- the General Laws, to receive pay therefor, without loss of his/her ordinary remuneration as an employee.
- B. An employee shall be entitled, during his/her annual tour of duty of not exceeding seventeen (17) days as a member of a reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States, to receive pay therefor, without loss of his/her ordinary remuneration as an employee under Section 59 of C. 33, General Laws as amended.
- C. An employee who is a member of a reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States and who is called for duty other than the annual tour of duty of not exceeding seventeen (17) days shall be subject to the provisions of Chapter 708 of the Acts of 1941 as amended, or of Chapter 805 of the Acts of 1950 as amended, or Chapter 671 of the Acts of 1966, and amendments thereto.
- D. In accordance with Chapter 708 of the Acts of 1941, as amended, an employee who, on or after January first, nineteen hundred and forty, shall have tendered his/her resignation or otherwise terminated his/her service for the purpose of serving in the military or naval forces of the United States who does serve or was or shall be rejected for such service, except as otherwise provided by Chapter 708 of the Acts of 1941, as amended, be deemed to be or to have been on military leave, and no such person shall be deemed to have resigned from the service of the Commonwealth or to have terminated such service until the expiration of two (2) years from the termination of said military or naval service by him/her.

Section 7. Maternity and Adoptive Leave

- A. A full-time employee who has completed the probationary period, or, if there is no such probationary period, has been employed for at least three (3) consecutive months, and who is absent from employment with the Commonwealth for a period not exceeding eight (8) weeks for the purpose of giving birth, or adopting a child, shall be granted a maternity leave without pay if the request for such leave is made to the CEO at least two (2) weeks in advance of the anticipated date of departure.
- B. At the expiration of the maternity or adoptive leave, the employee will be restored to his/her previous position of similar position with the same status, pay and length of service credit as of the date of the leave. If during the period of leave, employees in the same or similar position in the department have been laid off through no fault of their own, the employee will be extended the same rights and benefits, if any, extended to employees of equal length of service in the same or similar position in the department.
- C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the maternity of adoptive leave granted under this Article shall not affect an employee's right to receive any contractual benefits for which he/she is

and for

eligible at the time of the leave. Upon the expiration of a maternity or adoptive leave, an additional eight (8) weeks leave may be granted at the discretion of the CEO. The leave shall be unpaid unless the employee chooses to use any accrued vacation, personal leave or compensatory time to cover this period of absence. The period of unpaid leave shall not be included in any computation of contractual benefits, rights or advantages. Not later than two (2) weeks prior to the expiration of the eight-week maternity or adoptive leave, an employee may request a return to work at reduced time. If approved by the CEO, said employee will accrue benefits in the same proportion that such part-time service bears to full-time service.

- D. An employee on maternity or adoptive leave may have his/her group health insurance benefits continued for the period of time the employee is absent on such leave. The employee, while on leave, is required to pay the same monthly premium he/she would have paid had such leave not been taken.
- E. If an employee has accrued compensatory time, personal leave, sick leave or vacation leave credits at the commencement of her maternity leave, the employee may use such compensatory time and/or leave credits for which she may be eligible under the personal leave, sick leave or vacation leave provisions of this Article.
- During the first ten (10) workdays subsequent to the birth or adoption of a child, the mother/father shall receive his/her regular weekly salary. Where an eligible full-time or part-time employee and his/her eligible spouse are both employees of the Commonwealth, they shall jointly be entitled to a combined total of not more than ten (10) days paid under the provisions of this section.

Section 8. Parental Leave

- A. Upon written application to the CEO, including a statement of any reasons, any employee who has completed any applicable probation period and who has been employed at least three (3) consecutive months, and who has given at least two (2) weeks prior notice of his/her anticipated date of departure and who has given notice of his/her intention to return, may be granted parental or adoptive leave for a period not exceeding twenty four (24) weeks. Such leave shall be without pay for such period. The purpose for which an employee may submit his/her application for such unpaid leave shall be limited to the need to care for, or to make arrangement for care of, a minor dependent child of the employee, whether or not the child is the natural, adopted or stepchild of such employee.
- B. An employee who requests and is granted parental leave for the purpose of caring for the employee's minor dependent child under three years of age, may have his her group health insurance benefits continued for a period of ten (10) weeks while the employee is absent on such leave. The employee, while

Jr.

- on leave, is required to pay the same monthly premium he/she would have paid had such leave not been taken.
- C. If an employee has accrued compensatory time, personal leave, sick leave or vacation leave credits at the commencement of his/her parental leave, the employee may use such compensatory time and/or other leave credits for which he/she may be eligible under the sick leave, personal leave or vacation leave provisions of this Article.

Section 9. Family Leave

- A. Upon written application to the CEO, including a statement of any reasons, any employee who has completed his/her probationary period, or if there is no probationary period, who has been employed at least three (3) consecutive months who has given at least two (2) weeks prior notice of his/her anticipated date of departure and who has given notice of his/her intention to return, may be granted family leave for a period not exceeding twelve (12) weeks. Such leave shall be without pay or benefits for such period. The CEO may in his/her discretion, assign an employee to back fill for an employee who is on family leave. Such assignment may not be subject to the grievance procedure. The purpose for which an employee may submit his/her application for such unpaid leave shall be limited to the need to care for, or to make arrangements for the care of, the employee's spouse, parent, grandparent, grandchild or relative living in the same household.
- B. Ten (10) days of family leave may be taken in not less than one-day increments. However, such leave requires the prior approval of the CEO.
- C. If an employee has accrued compensatory time, personal leave, sick leave or vacation leave credits at the commencement of his/her family leave, the employee may use such compensatory time and/or other leave credits for which he/she may be eligible under the sick leave, personal leave or vacation leave provisions of this Article.

Section 10. Domestic Violence Leave

Up to a maximum of 112.50 paid hours per calendar year for Unit members in Unit I and up to a maximum of 120 paid hours per calendar year for Unit members in Unit II may be used for the purpose of arranging for the care of him/herself or his/her child(ren) or for attending to necessary legal proceedings or activities in instances where the employee or his/her child(ren) is a victim of domestic abuse and where the employee is not the perpetrator.

Section 11. The Family and Medical Leave Act and The Small Necessities Leave Act.

The parties to this Agreement recognize that various benefits, including but not limited to sick leave, maternity leave and family leave, may be available to bargaining unit members pursuant to state and federal law, and, in particular, the Family and Medical

JAK.

Leave Act and The Small Necessities Leave Act. It is the intent of the parties that any benefits provided by this Agreement are to be used as part of and not in addition to any statutory benefits so conferred.

Section 12. Unpaid Personal Leave.

Unpaid personal leave, other than herein before specified, may be granted by the CEO, upon the written request of the employee, at least thirty (30) days in advance. Approval may not be unreasonably denied.

Retirement, seniority, sick leave, vacation credit and time accrual for step increase shall not accrue during the term of such leave.

Section 13.

Leave of absence without pay may be granted to a unit member or members who are delegates to state or national conventions of fraternal and/or civic organizations. Leaves of absence with pay may be granted to a unit member to participate as an Honor Guard in Funerals of Deceased Veterans.

Section 14.

Leave of absence without pay may be granted to unit members who are Civil Defense Officers for the purpose of participating in local, state-sponsored and federal seminars and programs designed to improve his/her knowledge and understanding of Civil Defense.

Section 15.

Leave of absence with pay may be granted for the purpose of donating blood, not to exceed two (2) hours. In exceptional circumstances the CEO may grant leave with pay in excess of two hours.

33

ARTICLE 12 EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE

Section 1.

Five (5) working days after an employee has exhausted all of his/her sick leave, vacation leave, and personal leave, he/she shall be eligible for an extension of sick leave; provided that such employee has been employed a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months prior to the commencement of such extension of sick leave.

In anticipation of the exhaustion of all paid leave, an employee shall forward a request to the CEO of the Campus on the form entitled Request for Extension of Sick Leave Form (Appendix B). The Campus CEO shall act upon such request and forward the decision in writing to both the employee and the appropriate union official of the employee's unit within ten (10) working days of receipt. The approval of such request will be effective at the beginning of the sixth (6th) day of unpaid leave. The granting of an extension of sick leave shall be subject to the sole discretion of the CEO of the Campus. All requests for an extension of such leave shall be given due consideration and shall not be grievable.

Such extensions shall be available only for illness of the employee and not for illness of his/her immediate family. Further, an employee on an industrial accident leave shall not be eligible for an extension of sick leave.

Section 2.

Extensions may be available for a period of up to sixty (60) working days annually beginning on the date of the first extension. An employee, having been granted an extension of sick leave, shall be required to submit a physician's statement after each twenty (20) working days of granted leave.

Notwithstanding the above, in extraordinary circumstances, and in accordance with the terms and conditions governing the application and granting of leaves as such are set forth in Section 1 of this Article, an employee may be granted an additional fifteen (15) working days of extension of sick leave during the twelve (12) month period commencing upon the granting of the first such extension. Such additional extension of sick leave may commence immediately upon the conclusion of an earlier extension of sick leave or may be granted at any time during the remainder of the applicable twelve (12) month annual period. An employee need not serve a period of unpaid leave prior to being eligible for this fifteen (15) working days additional extension of sick leave.

Section 3.

Understanding that the health and welfare of unit members is of mutual concern, the CEO of the Campus, in evaluating a request, shall consider the following:

<u>Cost</u>: Consideration shall be given to the projected cost incurred to implement the request, including the temporary filling of the position, if necessary.

<u>History of sick leave usage:</u> Consideration shall be given to the previous use of leave benefits. Input must be sought from the employee's supervisor(s) and pertinent attendance or personnel records.

<u>Length of request:</u> The provision is not intended to provide for long term or permanent disabilities. There should be a reasonable expectation of return to full-time duties as evidenced by a physician's statement.

Section 4.

During the period of an extension of sick leave, an employee shall not be entitled to accrual of vacation or sick leave as provided for in Articles 11 and 13 of this Agreement.



ARTICLE 13 VACATIONS

Section 1.

A. Vacation leave with pay shall be credited to full-time employees at the end of each payroll period. The rate of accrual shall be as follows:

Length of continuous full-time
"Creditable service" as of the
end of each applicable month.

Less than fifty-four (54) months
(less than 4 ½ years)

Vacation Leave Accrued
Unit I

6.25 hrs
6.75 hrs
5/6 day per month (10 days/year)

Fifty-four (54) months,

but less than

one hundred fourteen (114) months

(4 ½ - 9 ½ years)

9.50 hrs

1.25 days per month (15 days/year)

One hundred fourteen (114) months, 12.50 hrs 13.50 hrs but less than 12/3 days per month (20 days/year) two hundred thirty-four (234) months (9 ½ - 19 ½ years)

Two hundred and thirty-four (234)

months or more

(19 ½ or more vears)

15.75 hrs

16.75 hrs

2 1 12 days per month (25 days/year)

B. For determining vacation status under this Article, "creditable service" shall be used. All service beginning on the first working day of the first full payroll month at the College where rendered, and all service thereafter becomes "creditable service" provided there has not been any break of three (3) years or more in such service as referred to in Section 12 of this Article. In computing an employee's vacation status, all "creditable service" from the first working day at the College up to the end of each full month of service rendered shall constitute the "creditable service" which shall be used to establish vacation credits for such month. Anything in the foregoing to the contrary notwithstanding, an employee shall, on the effective date of this Agreement, be deemed to have that "creditable service", if any, which he/she had at the termination of the predecessor Agreement.

Section 2.

A regular part-time employee shall be granted vacation leave in the same proportion that his her part-time service bears to full-time service.

m.

Section 3.

Vacation leave accrued shall be credited on the last day of the pay period based on the employee's full-time equivalent status on that date and shall be available for use the following day.

Section 4.

A full-time employee, on leave without pay and/or absent without pay shall not accrue vacation leave credit for that portion of time that he/she is on leave without pay.

Section 5.

A part-time employee, on leave without pay and/or absent without pay shall not accrue vacation leave credit for that portion of time that he/she is on leave without pay.

Section 6.

An employee who is reinstated or re-employed after less than three (3) years shall have his/her prior service included in determining his/her continuous service for vacation purposes.

Section 7.

15

An employee may request vacation leave when it becomes available. Vacation leave requests shall be granted unless in the CEO's opinion it is impossible or impracticable to do so because of work schedules or emergencies. The CEO shall make reasonable efforts to insure that an employee, having requested vacation leave, is granted such leave in order to prevent the loss of earned vacation credits.

An employee wishing to exercise his/her seniority for vacation preference must apply in writing not more than sixty (60) calendar days nor less than forty-five (45) calendar days in advance of the first day requested. (An employee wishing to file such request earlier than sixty (60) days prior to the first day requested, may do so but preference will be determined as of the 45th day in advance of the first day requested.) The CEO shall respond to this request in writing, indicating whether it can reasonably schedule such vacation, at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of the first day requested.

When vacation requests are submitted less than forty-five (45) calendar days in advance such requests shall be processed in the order in which they are received without regard to seniority. Responses shall be given to unit members in writing within seven (7) calendar days of date of receipt of such request.

No employee shall carry vacation leave credit of more than 480 hours for Unit members in Unit I and 512 hours for Unit members in Unit II.

An employee who has available unused vacation leave, and who because of the provisions of Section 7 of this article would lose such vacation leave, shall have such vacation leave converted to sick leave as of the accruals at the end of the last pay period in April and October of each year.

J.

Section 8.

Absences on account of sickness in excess of the authorized sick leave provided in this Agreement (or for personal reasons not provided for under said sick leave provisions), may be charged, unless otherwise notified by the employee, to personal leave, if any, then to vacation leave, if any.

Section 9.

Charges to vacation leave credit may be allowed in units of one-half (1/2) hour.

Section 10.

Upon the death of an employee who is eligible for vacation under this Agreement payment shall be made in an amount equal to the vacation leave which had been accrued prior to the employee's death but which had not been used by the employee up to the time of his/her separation from payroll, provided that no monetary or other allowance has already been made therefor. The CEO shall authorize payment of such compensation upon the establishment of a valid claim therefor, in the following order of precedence:

First: To the surviving beneficiary, or beneficiaries, if any, lawfully designated by the person under the State Employee's Retirement System;

Second: If there be no such designated beneficiary, to the estate of the deceased.

Section 11.

An employee who is eligible for vacation under these rules, whose services are terminated for any reason, shall be paid an amount equal to the vacation that had been accrued prior to such termination but which had not been used, up to a maximum of 480 hours for Unit members in Unit 1 and 512 hours for Unit members in Unit II, provided that no monetary or other allowance had already been made therefore.

Section 12.

An employee who is reinstated or re-employed shall be entitled to his/her vacation status at the termination of his/her previous service: provided, however, that no credit for previous service may be allowed where reinstatement occurs after absence of three (3) vears.

Section 13.

7-

An employee who is granted a leave of absence to enter service in the Armed Forces of the United States, under the provisions of Chapter 708, Acts of 1941, as amended, and who, upon honorable discharge from such service in said Armed Forces, returns to the service of the College, shall be paid an amount equal to the vacation leave which had been accrued prior to his her entry into such service in said Armed Forces but which had not been used prior to military leave, provided that no monetary or other allowance has already been made therefor.

Jan Jan

Section 14.

An employee who is reinstated after military leave, as referred to in Section 13, may be granted vacation allowance up to the equivalent of twelve (12) months' accrual as of the date on which he/she returned or returns, provided, that prior to such military leave, vacation had not been used or compensation paid in lieu thereof for the same year. Neither the above usage, nor absence due to military leave, shall in any way affect vacation credits accrued by such employee in any full payroll month of employment after he/she returns from military service.

Section 15.

An employee on leave with pay (excluding an employee on an extension of sick leave in accordance with Article 12) shall accumulate vacation leave credits.

Section 16.

Vacation leave accrued following a return to duty after leave without pay or absence without pay shall not be applied against such leave or absence.

Section 17.

Vacation status previously earned by an employee while in the employ of the Commonwealth or any of its cities, towns or municipalities prior to employment as a member of the bargaining unit shall be retained by such employee, provided that no break in service of three (3) years or more occurred between termination of such prior employment and the commencement of employment by the College. An employee in order to retain such previously earned status must submit to the CEO, within thirty (30) calendar days of employment, evidence attesting to such prior employment and such status.

Vyc,

ARTICLE 14 HOLIDAYS

Section 1.

The following days shall be holidays for employees:

New Year's Day

Independence Day

Martin Luther King Day

Labor Day

Washington's Birthday

Columbus Day

*Evacuation Day

Veteran's Day

Patriots Day

Thanksgiving Day

Memorial Day

Christmas Day

*Bunker Hill Day

* Only in Suffolk County must this Holiday be celebrated on the day upon which it falls.

Section 2.

When a holiday occurs on the regularly scheduled workday of an employee, he/she, if not required to work that day, shall be entitled to receive his/her regular day's pay for such holiday.

Section 3.

When a holiday occurs on a day that is not an employee's regular workday, if the employee's usual workweek is five (5) or more days he/she, at the request of the employee, may receive pay for one (1) workday at his/her regular rate of pay or one (1) compensatory day off with pay within one hundred and twenty (120) days following the holiday, to be taken at a time approved by the CEO.

Section 4.

An employee regularly scheduled to work on a holiday, and required to do so, shall be compensated at the rate of two (2) times his/her regular rate of pay. An employee not regularly scheduled to work on a holiday, but required to do so, or an employee who works overtime on a holiday, shall be compensated at the rate of two and one-half (2 ½) times his/her regular rate of pay. Any employee who works on a holiday may opt to take compensatory time in lieu of holiday pay within one hundred and twenty (120) days following the holiday. Such compensatory time shall be taken at a time approved by the CEO. (See Memorandum of Interpretation on Holiday Pay.) An employee may request an extension of up to forty-five (45) days, subject to approval by the CEO.

Section 5.

An employee not otherwise entitled to the Suffolk County holidays, pursuant to Section 1 above, and who is scheduled to work on such holiday, shall be entitled to one (1)

John,

workday off with pay in lieu of each of the Suffolk County holidays. Additionally, an employee who is not scheduled to work on a Suffolk County holiday, it the employee's usual workweek is five (5) or more days, shall be entitled to one (1) workday off with pay in lieu of each of the Suffolk County holidays. Such day off shall be approved by the CEO and taken by the employee within one hundred and twenty (120) days. An employee may request an extension of up to forty-five (45) days, subject to approval by the CEO.

Section 6.

Whenever any holiday falls on a Sunday, such holiday shall be deemed to fall on the day following. Whenever any holiday falls on a Saturday, such holiday shall be deemed to fall on the day preceding. Such holidays shall be granted in accordance with and subject to the foregoing provisions of this Article. However, if an employee is scheduled to work on such a Saturday or Sunday, that workday shall be deemed to be the holiday in accordance with the preceding Section 4.

Section 7.

Whenever the CEO has been informed that any workday has, in whole or in part, been declared a skeleton day he/she shall determine, who among the employees shall be released with pay from the regularly scheduled duties for the duration of the skeleton day.

Section 8.

An employee who is on leave without pay or is absent without pay for any of his/her scheduled workday immediately preceding or immediately following a holiday shall not receive holiday pay or a compensatory day off for that holiday.

Section 9.

A unit member scheduled to work on a holiday and who fails to report as scheduled shall be recorded as absent without pay unless the unit member properly notifies the CEO at least one hour prior to the beginning of the scheduled tour of duty. In circumstances beyond the control of the employee such notice shall be made as early as possible on the day of absence. An employee who is granted paid leave for a holiday on which he/she is scheduled to work shall not receive holiday pay or a compensatory day off for that holiday.

Section 10.

In addition to any other benefits provided by this Agreement, employees who render service on New Year's Day, Thanksgiving Day or Christmas Day shall receive a holiday differential of seventy-five cents (\$0.75) per hour for each hour worked.

Section 11.

A regular part-time employee shall be granted holiday leave in the same proportion that his her part-time service bears to full-time service.

Vr.

ARTICLE 15 EMPLOYEE EXPENSES

Section 1. Mileage

- A. When an employee is authorized to use his/her personal automobile for travel related to his/her employment he/she shall be reimbursed at the rate of twenty-eight (\$0.28) cents per mile. This rate of reimbursement is intended to cover the costs of garage, parking, tolls and other charges.
- B. An employee who travels from his/her home to a temporary assignment rather than to his/her regularly assigned office shall be allowed transportation expenses for the distance between his/her home and his/her temporary assignment whichever is less.
- C. Employees shall not be reimbursed for commuting between their home and office or other regular work location. With approval of the Personnel Administrator an employee's home may be designated as his/her regular office by his/her CEO for the purpose of allowed transportation expenses in cases where the employee has no regular office or other regular work location.

Section 2. Travel

A. An employee who is assigned to duty that requires him/her to be absent from his/her home for more than twenty-four (24) hours shall be reimbursed for reasonable charges for lodging including reasonable tips and for meal expenses, not to exceed the following amounts:

	Maximum	
Meals	Allowance	<u>Applicable</u>
Breakfast	\$ 3.75	3:01 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.
Lunch	\$ 6.50	9:01 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
Dinner	\$ 9.50	3:01 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.

- B. On the first day of assignment to duty in excess of twenty-four (24) hours, employees shall not be reimbursed for breakfast if such assignment commences after six (6:00) a.m., for lunch if such assignment commences after noon or for supper if such assignment commences after ten (10:00) p.m.
- C. On the last day of assignment to duty in excess of twenty-four (24) hours employees shall not be reimbursed for breakfast if such assignment ends before six (6:00) a.m., for lunch if such assignment ends before noon or for supper if such assignment ends before six (6:00) p.m.
- D. For travel of less than twenty-four (24) hours commencing two (2) hours or more before compensated time, employees shall be entitled to the above breakfast allowance. For travel of less than twenty-four (24) hours ending

J. M

14-

two (2) hours or more after compensated time employees shall be entitled to the above supper allowance. Employees are not entitled to the above lunch allowance for travel of less than twenty-four (24) hours.

Section 3. Overtime

Employees who work three (3) or more hours of authorized overtime, exclusive of meal times, in addition to their regular hours of employment or employees who work three (3) or more hours, exclusive of meal times on a day other than their regular work day shall be reimbursed for expenses incurred for authorized meals, including tips, not to exceed the following amounts and in accordance with the following time periods:

Breakfast	\$ 2.75	3:01 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.
Lunch	\$ 3.75	9:01 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
Dinner	\$ 5.75	3:01 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.
Midnight Snack	\$ 2.75	9:01 p.m. to 3:00 a.m.

Section 4. Prevailing State Rate(s)

If, during the term of this Agreement, an Agreement is:

- A. negotiated by the employer, as defined by Chapter 150E of the Massachusetts General Laws, on behalf of non-public safety employees of the Executive Branch; employees of the Board of Higher Education; or, employees of the Board of Trustees of the University of Massachusetts; and,
- B. in the event that said Agreement is submitted by the Governor or his designee to the General Court, and is funded by said General Court: and,
- C. in the further event that said Agreement contains provisions for mileage reimbursement or meal reimbursements which are greater than the mileage reimbursement or meal reimbursements contained in this Agreement; then,

The Employer agrees that with effect at the commencement of the next quarter of the fiscal year subsequent to receipt of written notification of the above from the Union, it will make adjustments for mileage reimbursement and/or meal reimbursements so that the amount of any such mileage reimbursement and/or meal shall be equal to the greater of any such mileage reimbursement and/or meal reimbursements.

ARTICLE 16 PARKING

Section 1.

Proper parking facilities shall be available to the employees covered by this contract with reasonable proximity of their regular work location.

Section 2.

The College shall endeavor to maintain adequate lighting in all parking areas.

Section 3.

The CEO agrees to discuss with the Union any proposed changes in the Parking Program at which time the Union can make recommendations for changes. The CEO will inform the Union and all employees prior to implementing any such changes.

ARTICLE 17 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Section 1. Salary Increases.

A. General Salary Increases

- 1. Effective July 1, 2001, the salary rate of employees shall be increased by three percent (3%).
- 2. Effective July 1, 2002, the salary rate of employees shall be increased by two and one-half percent (2.5%).
- 3. Effective July 1, 2003, the salary rate of employees shall be increased by three percent (3%).

B. Implementation of New Step Schedule

- 1. Effective July 1, 2002, the salary chart shall be updated to include a thirteenth (13th) step, which will be equivalent to a two percent (2%) increase.
- 2. Effective July 1, 2003, the salary chart shall be updated to include a fourteenth (14th) step, which will be equivalent to a two percent (2%) increase.

C. Salary Step Schedule Placement

- 1. Employees who, as of 6/30/02, are paid at step 12 of the salary schedule, shall effective 7/1/02, be placed on Step 13 on the salary schedule.
- 2. Employees who, as of 6/30/03, are paid at step 13 of the salary schedule, shall effective 7/1/03, be placed on Step 14 on the salary schedule.

Section 2. Employees Hired, Reinstated, or Re-employed on or after July 1, 2001.

The salary rate for an employee hired, reinstated, or re-employed on or after July 1, 2001 shall be Step 1 for the job group of his/her position except in cases where an employee is hired at an approved salary rate above the usual hiring rate. Such salary rate shall be paid in accordance with the salary schedules provided in Appendices C-1 through C-4 of this Agreement.

Section 3. Step Rate Increases and Promotions.

A. An employee shall advance under the terms of this Agreement to the next higher salary step in his/her job group until the maximum salary rate is reached unless he/she is denied such step rate by his/her CEO. Among the reasons for which the CEO may deny a salary step increase is a negative/unsatisfactory evaluation. An employee shall progress from one step to the next higher step after each fifty-two (52) weeks of creditable service in a step commencing from the first day of the payroll period immediately following his her anniversary date or promotion date as determined within this Article. In the event an employee is denied a step rate increase by his/her CEO, he/she shall be given a written statement of reasons therefore not later

Str.

- than five (5) days preceding the date when the increase would otherwise have taken effect. Time off the payroll is not creditable service for the purpose of step rate increases.
- B. Effective July 1, 2001, whenever an employee paid in accordance with the salary schedules provided in Appendices C-1 through C-4 of this Agreement receives a promotion to a higher job group, the employee's new salary rate shall be calculated as follows:
 - 1. determine the employee's salary rate at his/her current job group;
 - 2. find the next higher step within the employee's current job group or, for employees at the maximum rate within their current job group, multiply the employee's current salary rate by one and two one hundredths (1.02):
 - 3. compare the resultant amount to the rates for the higher job group into which the employee is being promoted;
 - 4. the employee's salary rate shall be the first rate in the higher job group, which at least equals the resultant amount.

The anniversary date for such employees shall become the date of promotion.

Section 4. General Provisions.

- A. Salary rates of full-time employees are set forth in Appendix C to this Agreement and are hereby made a part of this Agreement.
- B. The salary rates set forth in Appendix C shall remain in effect during the term of this Agreement. Salary rates shall not be increased or decreased except in accordance with the provisions of this Article.
- C. Employees shall be compensated on the basis of the salary rate for their official job classification.

Section 5. Regular Part-Time Employees.

A regular part-time employee shall be entitled to the provisions of this Article in the proportion that his/her service bears to full-time service.

Section 6. Salary Adjustments for Employees Entering From Other State Bargaining Units.

- A. An employee entering a position covered by this Agreement, without a break in service, from a position in an equivalent salary grade in a bargaining unit not covered by this Agreement shall be placed at the first step-in-grade up to the maximum of the grade, which at least equals the rate of compensation received immediately prior to his/her entry into the bargaining unit.
- B. An employee entering a position covered by this Agreement, without a break in service, from a position in a salary grade which is the equivalent of a lower grade in a bargaining unit not covered by this Agreement shall be placed at a step-in-grade in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this Article.

Shore S

1++

C. An employee entering a position covered by this Agreement, without a break in service, from a position in a salary grade which is the equivalent of a higher grade in a bargaining unit not covered by this Agreement shall be placed at a step-in-grade within his/her new job based upon the employee's creditable years of service in the equivalent of the new job grade or higher job grade, provided that in no event shall the employee be placed in a step-in-grade which results in the employee receiving a salary rate equal to or greater than the average salary received by the employee for the preceding six (6) months.

Section 7. Related Agreements

- If, during the term of this Agreement, an Agreement is
- A) negotiated by an employer, as defined by Chapter 150 E of the Massachusetts General Laws; and,
- B) said Agreement is negotiated on behalf of a collective bargaining unit represented by AFSCME and of application to employees of the Executive Branch, the Board of Higher Education or the Board of Trustees of The University of Massachusetts; and,
- C) in the event that said Agreement is submitted by the Governor or his designee to the General Court, and is funded by said General Court; and,
- D) in the further event that said Agreement contains provisions for salary increases and/or a bonus(es) which are greater than the salary increases and/or bonus(es) contained in this Agreement; then,

the employer agrees that it will reopen the provisions of this Article 17 of this Agreement to further collective bargaining negotiations.

WY.

ARTICLE 18 HEALTH AND WELFARE

Section 1. Group Health and Accident Insurance

Employees shall continue to be covered under the State's Group Health and Accident Insurance plan pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 32A of the General Laws as amended or as such plan may be made available under applicable laws of the Commonwealth.

Section 2. Health and Welfare Plan

A. Creation of Trust Agreement

The parties have agreed to establish a Health and Welfare Trust Fund under an Agreement and Declaration of Trust drafted by the Employer and executed by the Union and the Employer. Such Agreement and Declaration of Trust (hereinafter referred to as the "trust agreement") provides for a Board of Trustees composed of an equal number of representatives of the Employer and the Union.

The Board of Trustees of the Health and Welfare Trust Fund shall determine in their discretion and within the terms of this Agreement and the Agreement and Declaration of Trust such health and welfare benefits to be extended by the Health and Welfare Trust Fund to employees and/or their dependents.

B. Funding

Effective July 1, 2001, the Employer will contribute on behalf of each full-time employee equivalent a total of nine dollars (\$9.00) per calendar week. Effective June 30, 2002, the Employer will contribute on behalf of each full-time employee equivalent a total of ten dollars (\$10.00) per calendar week. Effective June 29, 2003, the Employer will contribute on behalf of each full-time employee equivalent a total of eleven dollars (\$11.00) per calendar week.

The amount of contributions for each year shall be based on the number of full-time equivalent employees as of the last payroll period in October. The contributions made by the Employer to the Health and Welfare Trust Fund shall not be used for any purpose other than to provide health and welfare benefits and to pay the operating and administrative expenses of the fund. The contributions shall be made by the Employer in an aggregate sum within forty-five (45) days following the end of the calendar month during which contributions were collected.

C. Non-Grievability

No dispute over a claim for any benefits extended by this Health and Welfare Trust Fund shall be subject to the grievance procedure established in any collective bargaining Agreement between the Employer and the Union.

J.M.

D. Employer's Liability

It is expressly agreed and understood that the Employer does not accept, nor is the Employer to be charged with, any responsibility in any manner connected with the determination of liability to any employee claiming under any of the benefits extended by the Health and Welfare Trust Fund. The liability of the Employer shall be limited to the contributions indicated in this Section 2.

C. N.

ARTICLE 19 PROMOTIONS AND FILLING OF VACANCIES

Section 1. Posting of Vacancies.

- A. All vacancies in positions subject to this Agreement, when available to be filled as determined by the Employer, shall be posted for not less than ten (10) calendar days.
- B. The notice of vacancy shall include the following:
 - 1. Job Title
 - 2. Grade and/or Salary Range
 - 3. Application Closing Date
 - 4. A Description of Duties and Qualifications
 The notice of vacancy shall include the Human Resources Division
 Classification Specification for the vacant position. A statement of
 duties specific to the vacant position may be appended to the notice
 of vacancy. Such statement of specific duties shall fall within the
 Human Resources Division Classification Specification.
 - 5. Hours and Days of Work
 - 6. Source of Funding
 - 7. If grant funded, the termination date of the grant, if known.
- C. Any employee seeking to be considered for any such vacant position shall submit a written application in accordance with the procedures and within the time limits prescribed by this Agreement. The pool of candidates for such vacant position shall include every employee and every other person who shall have applied for such position in accordance with the terms of such notice.

Section 2. Selection.

Positions shall be awarded at an appropriate time after consideration of all applicants then available in accordance with the following provisions, except where a position is targeted in accordance with the official campus Affirmative Action plan. In the event that the awarding of the position will be later than thirty (30) days after the closing date, the Union shall be notified of the delay.

Section 3. Criteria.

- A. For the purposes of this Article, promotion shall be defined as an appointment to a position of a higher job grade. A change in job title without a change in job grade shall be considered a lateral appointment and a change in job without a change in job title or job grade shall be considered a lateral transfer.
- B. The following criteria, listed in priority order, shall be used by the CEO in selecting a candidate to fill a vacancy. Each of the criteria will be applied to all candidates for a vacant position.

- 1. Ability to perform the requirements of the position.
- 2. Seniority
- 3. Work History and Performance.
- 4. Experience in Related Work.
- 5. Education and/or Training related to the Position.
- C. If, after the application of the criteria set forth in Section 3 (B) above, it is the judgement of the CEO that there are two or more candidates who are approximately equally best qualified, then among such candidates, preference shall be granted to the employee in either bargaining unit who has the most seniority at the college.

Section 4. Trial Period.

- A. A non-probationary employee who is promoted, laterally appointed or laterally transferred shall serve a three (3) month trial period from the effective date of such promotion, lateral appointment or lateral transfer.
- B. During this trial period, if the employee's work performance in the new assignment is not satisfactory to the CEO, said employee shall revert back to his or her former position. Following management's decision to return an individual to his/her former position, the employee may request in writing to discuss the reason(s) for this action. This discussion will take place at the level the decision was made. If the employee is not satisfied with the reason(s) given for his/her return, he/she may file a grievance at the next higher level of the grievance procedure, provided, however, that there shall be at least one formal grievance hearing held at the campus level.
- C. If the employee is not satisfied with the new position, he/she may elect to return to his/her former position within thirty (30) days after said new appointment.
- D. All appointments made pursuant to this Section 4 shall be temporary or provisional appointments at least until the completion of the trial period or the completion of the grievance procedure. All vacancies resulting from an appointment pursuant to this Section 4 shall be filled temporarily or provisionally at least until the appointed employee has completed his/her trial period or the completion of the grievance procedure. An employee who has been promoted pursuant to this Article and whose promotion is overturned by the grievance procedure shall not be terminated but shall return to his/her former position.

Section 5.

4.5

Unsuccessful bargaining unit applicants for posted vacancies within the bargaining unit shall, within a reasonable period of time, receive a notice of non-selection. At the employee's written request, he she will be entitled to attend a meeting with management to discuss the reasons for non-selection. At the employee's option, he/she may be

SNJ

accompanied by a local designated union official. If the employee is not satisfied with the reason(s) for non-selection, he/she may file a grievance at the next higher level of the grievance procedure, provided however, that there shall be at least one formal grievance hearing held at a campus level. Late notice shall not preclude the filing of a grievance for non-selection.

Section 6.

- A. All notices of vacancies at the College shall be posted in at least three (3) conspicuous places and other places as may be mutually agreed upon by the CEO and the Union.
- B. Notice of vacancies will be sent to the designated Union official upon posting.

Section 7. Extension of Seniority.

In the case of institute, grant or contract employees, seniority for the purpose of applying for vacant positions shall be extended three (3) months beyond the actual expiration date of the then current funding source.

Section 8. Reduction in Grade.

Any employee in a grade higher than that announced in the vacancy notice may submit an application for the posted vacancy in accordance with the provisions of this Article. If the applicant is successful, the reduction in grade will be concurrent with the appointment to the new position.



ARTICLE 20 LAYOFF AND RECALL

Section 1.

A. Procedures.

In the event of a reduction of personnel, the parties shall endeavor to maintain as near as possible the same percentage of minority and female employees as existed immediately prior thereto, where under-utilization or under representation exists. Subject to this understanding, those employees having least seniority within classification would be considered first for release.

B. Notice to Union.

In the event management becomes aware of an impending reduction in the work force, it shall, when practical, notify the Union twenty (20) working days prior to the layoff.

C. Meeting with the Union.

Within three (3) working days of management notice to the Union of an impending layoff, management shall meet with the Union and discuss the impact of the layoff on the affected employee(s).

This discussion shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:

- 1. Availability of similar positions within the same College; and,
- 2. Availability of training or retraining programs which may be applicable to the affected employees.

D. Notice to Employee.

In the event of an actual layoff, management will notify the affected employees in writing as soon as possible, but not less than fifteen (15) working days in advance of the layoff date and will send a copy of such notice to the Union. Where notices are sent by first class mail, the time shall begin to run one day after the date of the mailing of the notice.

Section 2.

A. Selection for Layoff.

In the event the CEO shall layoff employees because of a reduction in force, layoffs shall be conducted by job classification on the basis of the employee's campus seniority provided the employee retained has the ability to perform the job. In the event of a layoff, within a job classification, probationary employees within that job classification shall be laid off first.

B. Layoff.

In the event an employee is scheduled to be laid off and there exists a vacant position which has been certified for filling in an equal or lower graded classification, upon timely application by the employee, campus seniority

M

.740

shall prevail in permitting such an employee to fill such position provided the employee has the ability to perform the work in a competent manner.

C. Bumping.

In the event a non-probationary employee is scheduled to be laid off and there exist a position in an equal or lower graded classification which the employee has previously held on campus in a competent manner or if the regular duties of the position are a part of the normal requirements of the employee in his/her present position and which the employee can immediately perform in a competent manner, campus seniority shall prevail in permitting such employees to bump the least senior individual in such classification covered by this Agreement.

Section 3. Recall.

- A. The CEO shall maintain a recall roster from which laid-off employees will be recalled to positions to be filled in accordance with their seniority within classification.
- B. A laid off employee will remain on the recall roster for three (3) years, provided that an employee who is offered recall to a position in the same job classification as the position for which he/she was laid off and who fails to accept such offer within five (5) calendar days or three (3) working days, whichever is greater, shall be removed from the recall list and his/her recall rights and seniority shall terminate at that time. The recalled employee may delay his/her return to work for a period of up to fourteen (14) calendar days except in emergency situations after the date of acceptance of recall.

Section 4. Seniority.

- A. As used in this Article, seniority shall mean all continuous service since the last date of hire at the campus.
- B. In computing seniority as defined in this Article, any break in service or any time off the payroll in excess of twenty-eight (28) consecutive days shall be excluded from total seniority except approved military, maternity, industrial accident leave, and a layoff of up to three (3) months.

Section 5.

This Article shall not apply to employees paid from institute, grant or contract funds. For the purpose of applying for vacant positions, such employees shall retain their seniority for three (3) months after their termination.

Section 6.

Notwithstanding their position on the seniority list, the individuals holding the following positions shall in the event of a layoff continue to be employed at all times, provided they can perform the duties of any available positions:

President Vice-President Secretary Treasurer Recording Secretary

Section 7.

In the event there is a layoff of bargaining unit employees, they shall not be replaced by students, except for short periods of time not in excess of twenty (20) hours per week. The policies currently in effect regarding this section will remain in full force and effect for the life of this Agreement.

Section 8.

In the determination of selecting unit employees to be laid off in accordance with this Article, management shall make reasonable efforts to first lay off JJ Account funded and similar type employees who normally perform those duties performed by bargaining unit members in classifications affected by the layoff.

Vir.

ARTICLE 21 CONTRACTING OUT

Within a reasonable time prior to the College contracting out work which will result in the layoff of an employee who performs the function that is contracted out, the Union shall be notified and the CEO and the Union shall discuss the availability of similar positions within the CEO's jurisdiction for which the laid off employee is determined to be qualified and shall discuss the availability of any training programs which may be applicable to the employee. In reviewing these placement possibilities, every effort will be made to seek matches of worker skills and qualification with available, comparable positions.

When such contracting out is contemplated, but prior to its implementation, there shall be established at the campus a Special Labor Management Committee to advise the CEO on the contracting out of personnel services. The Committee shall consist of four persons: two persons designated by the appropriate Union official of the campus and two persons designated by the Chief Personnel Officer. Said Committee shall discuss and within a reasonable time recommend to the CEO procedures and criteria regarding the contracting out of services by the College where such services are of a type traditionally performed by bargaining unit members. The Committee's examination may include, but not be limited to, cost effectiveness, and quality of work and impact on career development.

If contracting out results in the layoff of a member(s) of the bargaining unit, the provisions of Article 20 shall apply.

JY,

ARTICLE 22 OUT OF TITLE WORK

Section 1. Work in a Lower Classification.

- A. When an employee is assigned by the CEO to perform the duties of a position classified in a grade lower than that in which the employee performs his/her duties, he/she will be compensated at his/her regular rate of pay as if performing his/her regular duties.
- B. An employee who is assigned by the CEO to perform overtime work in a lower classification shall have overtime compensation computed at the employee's regular rate of compensation.

Section 2. Work in a Higher Classification.

1. 1

- Any employee who is assigned by the CEO to a vacant position in a higher Α. grade for five (5) consecutive days or more, shall receive the salary rate at the first step of the higher classification from the first date of the appointment. However, if such assigned employee's regular rate of compensation is higher, the compensation shall be computed at the step of the higher classification which is closest to the employee's regular compensation and provides at least one promotion factor of the higher classification over the employee's regular rate of compensation. Whenever any employee is assigned to any vacant higher rated position he/she shall no later than the tenth (10th) working day of his/her performance of the higher rated position's duties complete and transmit to his/her supervisor the form attached (Appendix D). The supervisor shall thereupon complete the applicable portion of the form and transmit the same to the CEO who shall thereupon determine whether the work assignment is or is not out of title work. This section shall not apply to an employee assuming the duties of someone on authorized vacation leave of up to ten (10) consecutive workdays.
 - B. An employee who is assigned by the CEO to perform overtime work in a higher classification shall have overtime compensation computed at the first step rate of the higher classification, unless the employee's regular rate of compensation is higher, in which case the overtime compensation shall be computed at the employee's regular rate of compensation.



ARTICLE 23 CLASSIFICATION AND RECLASSIFICATION

Section 1. Class Specifications.

- A. The College shall provide the Union with a copy of the class specification of each title covered by this Agreement for which such a specification exists.
- B. Each employee in the bargaining unit shall be permitted by the College to have access to examine his or her class specification.
- C. The parties to this Agreement acknowledge that the classification structure and the accompanying job specifications have been created by the Commonwealth through its Human Resources Division for the purpose of describing the duties and responsibilities of each job title.
- D. Job Specification Review Committee.
 - 1. The parties to this Agreement acknowledge the need to review existing bargaining unit job specifications in an effort to cause those job specifications to more accurately reflect the duties and responsibilities performed by incumbents of those titles.
 - 2. Accordingly, the parties agree to continue the Job Specification Review Committee to review bargaining unit job specifications and job titles and to seek to appropriately adjust them as the Committee may deem necessary.
 - 3. The Committee shall develop guidelines and procedures for such a review process.
 - 4. Said Committee shall consist of three (3) members from the Union and three (3) members from the Board of Higher Education and shall meet until all job specifications and/or job titles either party believes in need of adjustment have been addressed.
 - 5. The committee mutually agrees to meet as often as necessary to complete said review process by May 31, 2002.

Section 2. Individual Appeal of Classification.

An employee who seeks a reclassification shall adhere to the following procedure:

- 1. An employee who seeks a reclassification of that position may request an audit of the position on the form attached hereto (Appendix E).
- 2. The employee shall file said form with the Chief Personnel Officer and shall forward a copy of same to the Union.
- 3. The Chief Personnel Officer or designee shall conduct a job audit within ninety (90) working days of receipt of the request.
- 4. Within ten (10) working days of completion of the job audit, the Chief Personnel Officer or designee shall hold a hearing. Nothing shall preclude the appointment of a committee to serve as the designee of the Chief Personnel

Officer where it is currently the practice to do so. In the case of a request for an individual reclassification, the hearing officer shall not be in the supervisory chain of the employee seeking the reclassification. The Union may participate in the hearing if the employee so requests.

- 5. The Chief Personnel Officer shall make a final determination within thirty (30) working days of the hearing.
- 6. The decision of the Chief Personnel Officer may be appealed within ten (10) working days to the CEO or designee who shall issue a decision within thirty (30) working days of receipt of the appeal.
- 7. When such reclassification request is granted, the monies necessary to fund such reclassification shall be budgeted for the following fiscal year, and if funds are available such reclassification shall be effective on the date of the appeal to the Chief Personnel Officer.
- 8. When a request for reclassification is denied, the individual may submit within fifteen (15) working days after the CEO's decision, a written appeal to the Chancellor or his/her designee, a copy of which shall be sent to the CEO of the College. Within ten (10) working days after submitting this request for review the individual must submit all of his/her reclassification package to the Chancellor.

The Chancellor shall refer all reclassification appeals to the Board of Higher Education Reclassification Review Committee (hereinafter The Reclassification Committee). The Reclassification Committee shall be comprised of five (5) members as follows: one member, who shall be the Chairperson of the Committee, shall be from the staff of the Board of Higher Education and shall be appointed by the Chancellor; one member shall be an excluded administrator from the Community Colleges who shall be appointed by the Chancellor; one member shall be an excluded administrator from the State Colleges who shall be appointed by the Chancellor; one member shall be from the staff of A.F.S.C.M.E., who shall be appointed by the Union; and, one member shall be a Union official who shall be appointed by the Union. Members of the Reclassification Committee shall not have fixed terms and shall serve at the pleasure of the Chancellor or the Union, respectively. The Reclassification Committee shall be convened by the Chairperson and meet every other month, unless the members of the Reclassification Committee mutually agree to meet more frequently.

The Chairperson of the Reclassification Committee shall acknowledge receipt of all reclassification appeals filed with the Chancellor and shall notify the CEO of the College that an appeal has been filed. Upon such notification, the CEO of the College shall forward a complete copy of the reclassification record to the Chancellor. A notice of the date, time and location upon which the appeal will be heard by the Reclassification Committee shall be sent in

16

M

writing to the appellant or his/her representative and to the College at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the scheduled date of such hearing. Subsequent to the hearing of the appeal, the Reclassification Committee shall meet to discuss the merits of the reclassification. Unless otherwise stated the Reclassification Committee shall complete their review of the merits and make a determination on the day upon which the Committee reviews the appeal, unless additional information and/or time is needed. All members of the Reclassification Committee are voting members. The final decision of the Reclassification Committee will be binding on all parties. Efforts shall be made to hear an appeal within sixty (60) working days following receipt of the individual's reclassification package by the Chancellor.

- 9. The parties agree that the procedure herein provided shall be the sole procedure for reclassification and reallocation of positions and the grievance and arbitration procedures of Article 29 shall not apply.
- 10. The above procedure will be effective as of the execution date of this Agreement. Any employee who filed a reclassification prior to the execution date will have the option of continuing the original process through the Civil Service Commission or to utilize the above process. All reclassifications filed on the date of execution or after will be governed by the above mentioned process.
- 11.At any time subsequent to October 1, 2003 and prior to December 1, 2003, either party may give notice to terminate this process effective January 1, 2004 at which time Sections 2 and 3 of the Agreement between the parties dated July 1, 1999 through June 30, 2001, shall be applied to all outstanding reclassifications. The effective date of the reclassification will remain the original date filed.

ARTICLE 24 CLASS REALLOCATIONS

Section 1.

Class reallocations may be requested by the Union whenever it believes a reallocation is justified by the existence of an inequitable relationship between the positions covered by the reallocation requests and other positions covered by this Agreement. If the Employer agrees that such an inequity exists, the Employer and the Union agree to jointly petition the General Court for such reallocation. If, however, the parties are unable to reach agreement, the subject shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

Section 2.

The Employer and the Union agree that the procedure provided in Section 1 shall be the sole procedure for class reallocation for all classes covered by this Agreement and no other class reallocations shall be granted.

Section 3.

Effective July 7, 2002, the titles listed in Appendix I shall be reallocated to the next higher job grade. Incumbent employees shall retain their current step placement and anniversary date.

M

ARTICLE 25 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Section 1. Tuition Remission.

A. Full-time Employees.

1. Eligibility.

- a. All full-time employees of a State or Community College who are paid from the AA Subsidiary Account, and who have completed at least six (6) months of service as of the date of enrollment, shall be eligible for system-wide tuition remission benefits. Employees on paid leave of absence or industrial accident leave remain eligible during the period of any such leave. Employees on unpaid leave shall remain eligible for a maximum of one calendar year. Retired or former employees shall not be eligible; however, the spouse and dependent children of retired, former, or deceased employees may retain eligibility under certain conditions (see c, d, and e below).
- b. The spouse and dependent child or children of any eligible employee shall also be eligible for system-wide tuition remission benefits. A "dependent child" shall mean any natural, adopted or step child who is claimed as a dependent on the eligible employee's Federal Tax Return for the tax year immediately preceding enrollment. No employee's child beyond the age of twenty-five (25) shall be eligible for tuition remission: provided, however, that in exceptional circumstances and for good reason the President of the public college or university granting the tuition remission may waive this age limitation for an employee's child who continues to meet the IRS standards of dependency.
- c. If an eligible employee retires while a child or spouse is enrolled in a program of study or degree program, the spouse or child may complete such program with tuition remission, provided that enrollment is continuous.
- d. If an eligible employee who has completed at least five (5) years of full-time equivalent service dies, the surviving spouse and children shall be eligible to enter and/or complete one full program of study or degree program with tuition remission. The term "program" as used in this Section D and the above Section C shall include, but not be limited to, any program of study begun at a Community College and continued without interruption through the bachelor's degree at a State College or University.
- e. If an eligible employee leaves the employment of public higher education under conditions other than those described in C and D above

(الحدور

while a spouse or child may complete the semester already begun, at the end of the semester his/her eligibility for tuition remission terminates.

2. Applicability.

Tuition remission shall be provided to eligible employees, their spouse and dependent children as follows:

- a. For enrollment in any State-supported course or program at the undergraduate or graduate level at any Community College. State College or University excluding the M.D. Program at the University of Massachusetts Medical School, full tuition remission shall apply.
- b. For enrollment in any non-State-supported course or program offered through continuing education, including any community service course or program at any Community College, State College or University, fifty percent (50%) tuition remission shall apply.
- c. Tuition remission shall apply to non-credit as well as credit-bearing courses.

3. Limitations.

- a. Employees (or their spouse or dependent children) receiving tuition remission are responsible for the payment of all other educational costs, including fees (application, laboratory, etc.), books and supplies.
- b. Employees (or their spouse or dependent children) must apply for admission and meet all admissions standards for the desired course/program.
- c. Admission to all courses/programs in continuing education is on a space available basis. Further, each local campus administration reserves the right to cancel any continuing education course in which a minimum number of full tuition-paying students, as determined by the administration, have not enrolled.
- d. Tuition remission benefits are non-transferable.

4. Certification Process.

To qualify for tuition remission, an employee must take the following steps:

- a. Apply for, and be admitted to the desired course/program.
- b. Complete a "Certificate of Eligibility for System Wide Tuition Remission" (Appendix F) and have it signed by his/her Department Head or Supervisor and by the Chief Personnel Officer of the college at which he/she is employed. If the tuition remission is to be used by the employee's spouse or dependent child, the name and relationship of this individual should be indicated on the certificate. The certificate should be completed as far in advance of the date of enrollment as possible.

775.9

- c. Submit the completed Certificate of Eligibility with his/her tuition bill to the college or university at which he/she plans to enroll. The employee (or his spouse or dependent children) must remit payment at the same time for costs not covered by tuition remission.
- d. It is the responsibility of the employee to insure that the Certificate of Eligibility is approved in a timely fashion. Retroactive tuition rebates will not be made except in unusual circumstances beyond the control of the employee.

5. Continuation of Existing Benefits.

The implementation of this policy shall not limit or preclude any tuition remission benefits currently enjoyed by higher education employees under the terms of applicable collective bargaining agreements or personnel policies.

6. Interpretation of this Policy.

The Chancellor or his designee shall have the sole authority to resolve any dispute concerning the interpretation and application of this policy. The Chancellor may amend or modify this policy from time to time as he deems appropriate and necessary. No dispute or claim of benefits arising from this policy shall be the subject of a grievance or arbitration procedure.

B. Part-time Employees.

1. Eligibility.

- a. All part-time employees who are members of a collective bargaining unit, who are paid from the AA Subsidiary Account, and who have completed at least six months of full-time equivalent service as of the date of enrollment, shall be eligible for system-wide tuition remission benefits. No other part time employees shall be eligible for system-wide tuition remission.
- b. The spouse and dependent child or children of any eligible part-time employee shall also be eligible for system-wide tuition benefits. The age limitation and IRS dependency standards set forth in the Board's System-Wide Tuition Remission Policy shall apply to children of eligible part-time employees.

2. Applicability.

Tuition remission shall be provided to eligible part time employees, their spouse and dependent children as follows:

a. For enrollment in any State-supported course or program at the undergraduate or graduate level at any Community College, State College or University, excluding the M.D. program at the University of Massachusetts Medical School, fifty percent (50%) tuition remission shall apply.

e de

b. For enrollment in any non-State course or program offered through continuing education, including any community service course or program, at any Community College, State College or University, twenty-five percent (25%) tuition remission shall apply.

c. Tuition remission shall apply to non-credit as well as credit-bearing courses. In all other respects, the provisions of the Board's System-Wide Tuition Remission Policy shall be applicable to eligible part-time employees.

Section 2. Educational Leave.

r . .

Full-time employees may, upon application and approval, be granted leave of absence with pay for educational purposes to attend conferences, seminars, briefing sessions or functions of a similar nature that are intended to improve or upgrade the individual's skill or professional ability. The employee shall not suffer any loss of seniority or benefits as a result of such leave.

An employee may be allowed to take one (1) course per semester during said employee's regular hours of work. As a consequence of taking a course during regular work hours, an employee's tour of duty shall be adjusted so that in addition to the time during which an employee is released to take such course, said employee will be scheduled for a complete tour of duty. In calculating the tour of duty under such circumstances an employee must take a minimum of fifteen (15) minutes as a regular meal break and must include sufficient time, as determined by the Chief Personnel Officer, to travel to and from the work area to the class location.

Section 3. Board of Higher Education Level Training Committee.

The Employer and the Union agree to establish a Board Level Training Committee for the State and Community Colleges covered by this Agreement. The Committee shall consist of six (6) members appointed by the Board and six (6) members appointed by the Union. In addition, the Chancellor of the Board or designee shall designate the chairperson for management, and the Union shall designate the chairperson for the Union.

Trust Fund employees shall be fully eligible for participation in all training programs established by their respective Committee.

The Committee shall meet at least four (4) times per year unless mutually agreed otherwise. The committee shall determine:

- 1. The content and priority of training and/or retraining programs:
- 2. The location (i.e., on-site, regional, statewide) of such programs; and,
- 3. The criteria for selection of participants.

Funding for local, regional and statewide programs shall be provided by the Board. To maintain the in-service training program, the Employer shall provide a fund of thirty-five dollars (\$35.00) per full-time equivalent employee on the payroll as of July 1, 2001:

and a

and on July 1, 2002 shall add to the fund thirty-five dollars (\$35.00) per full-time equivalent employee on the payroll as of said July 1, 2002; and, on July 1, 2003 shall add to the fund thirty-five dollars (\$35.00) per full-time equivalent employee on the payroll as of said July 1, 2003.

Section 4.

The employer recognizes their responsibility to provide orientation/training related to the implementation of new equipment/technology.

Section 5.

The parties agree that should a unit member feel threatened by the content of a mandatory training course or seminar, the course content of such program shall be reviewed by the CEO and subsequent to such review the CEO will discuss his/her findings with the Chief Steward for the unit.

الأدر

ARTICLE 26 SAFETY PROCEDURES

Section 1.

The Employer shall comply with any and every applicable statute, federal and state, and with any such rules and regulations as may be promulgated thereunder, that govern the conditions of health and safety in the place of work of its employees. The College may promulgate and enforce any such rules and regulations as it may deem appropriate from time to time to provide for the safety of its employees and to ensure compliance with any such statute or with the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Prior to the promulgation of any such rules and regulations by the College, the CEO shall consult with representatives of the Union regarding such rules and regulations and their enforcement; provided however, consultation shall not be required in respect of such rules and regulations in force at any College on the date of this Agreement.

All work related injuries shall be reported to the appropriate administrator immediately upon their occurrence or when the employee has knowledge of such injuries in accordance with the procedures in effect at the College. When an employee is injured while at work, the College shall complete and process the standard form for Employer's first report of injury within fourteen (14) days from the filing of said report with a copy to the employee.

Grievances involving the interpretation or application of the provisions of this Article may be processed through Step IV of the grievance procedure set forth in Article 29 of this Agreement but shall not be processed to Step V thereof.

Section 2.

There shall be established a committee to be known as the Union/Management Safety Committee at each College. Such committee shall be composed of eight (8) members, four (4) representing the college administration and four (4) representing the Union. Such Committee may reduce their number by mutual agreement. The purpose of the Committee shall be to promote a safe, clean and wholesome environment, the development of safety programs and procedures and shall focus attention on any injuries which have resulted and would serve to alter or revise any such programs or procedures. There shall be at least four (4) meetings of the Committee each year. Additional meetings shall be arranged at the request of either party.

Any health and safety issue which cannot be resolved by the local level Safety Committee may be referred by mutual agreement of both parties to the Board Level Labor Management Committee for discussion.

Section 3.

Where uniforms, protective clothing, safety shoes, safety glasses or any type of protective device are necessary and required in the performance of an employee's duties, or where employee's clothing is subject to excessive wear and tear because of chemicals.

PKC 0

abrasives, pollutants, etc., and need to be frequently replaced, such uniforms, protective clothing or any type of protective device will be provided by the College.

Section 4.

- 1. Employees shall have a First Aid kit available in their work area.
- 2. No employee shall be required to lift unreasonable weights without adequate assistance.
- 3. No employee shall be required to operate defective equipment.
- 4. Where it is currently the practice, at least two (2) employees shall be assigned when working underground, in tunnels, in crawl spaces, in hazardous areas where steam, sewage, electrical, or other systems exist, in trenches with a depth of five (5) or more feet, or when working more than ten (10) feet above the floor or the ground. For other institutions, appropriate precautions (i.e., additional staffing, close supervision, etc.) will be taken to ensure the safety of employees working in these hazardous areas.
- 5. No employee shall be assigned to work from ladders, staging, or rigging unless such equipment meets all safety regulations.
- 6. The provisions of all applicable rules, standards, regulations and codes promulgated under the General Laws shall apply to all apparatus, materials, equipment and structures, their installation, maintenance and operation within the College. The College and the Union shall endeavor to conform to such rules, standards, regulations and codes.
- 7. Employees shall notify the appropriate office of the College (i.e., Office of Employee/Labor Relations or Director of Facilities) prior to notifying any other administrative agency of the Commonwealth of any condition or situation concerning work orders, or work performed requiring a license, a certificate of competency, certificate of registration, or a permit.
- 8. Employees shall not work in areas, known by management, where toxic or radioactive materials are present unless they are made aware of the hazards. All such hazards shall be posted and identified.
- 9. The College agrees to take positive action to eliminate pets and stray animals on campus and the problems arising from the keeping of pets.
- 10. Employees shall not be assigned excessive or unreasonable workloads.
- 11. All work shall be performed under safe and sanitary conditions, provided, however, the workforce may be used to correct an unsafe or unsanitary condition.
- 12. Each College shall endeavor to keep each woman's restroom equipped with a sanitary napkin dispensing machine, which shall be kept supplied, and in working order.
- 13. Those institutions that currently provide a cot suitably equipped and a chair and or furnish adequate rest area facilities for the use of employees shall continue to do so. The issue of providing an adequate rest area will be a permanent agenda item for the College Safety Committee established by Article 26.

رين أ

- 14. The College shall endeavor to eliminate noxious odors.
- 15. The First Aid area shall be equipped with a cot and necessary First Aid supplies.
- 16. Employees assigned to work exposed to unreasonable conditions of weather or extremities in temperature shall be allowed reasonable rest periods each hour.
- 17. Power tools and saws shall be sharpened by competent individuals.
- 18. The College agrees to endeavor to arrange for transportation to a medical facility for any employee requiring medical treatment.
- 19. No employee shall be assigned to work in areas where heavy moving machinery, high voltage current, or nauseous gases are present unless he/she is accompanied by one or more other employees.
- 20. Except at campuses where it is currently the practice of the custodial force to wash windows on the outside of buildings where it is necessary to use extension ladders, safety belts, boatswain chairs, staging and power lifts, no member of the custodial force shall be required to perform such tasks using said equipment.
- 21. With all reasonable speed, areas found to contain friable asbestoscontaining materials shall be posted, and all reports of suspected areas of asbestos hazard shall be promptly investigated.
- 22. The issue of asbestos generally will be a permanent agenda item for the College Safety Committee established by the terms of Article 26. The Committee shall periodically review standards for adequacy with respect to current research and recommend additions to the standards where shown to be necessary.

Section 5.

...

- A. In order to promote and establish a safe environment within the workplace the parties hereto agree that health and safety issues relative to VDT's shall be an appropriate item for discussion by the Labor/Management Committee as established in Article 32.
- B. VDT operators shall not be required to perform continuous duties at the work screen for periods in excess of two (2) hours at a time. For each consecutive two (2) hour period worked at his/her station, the employee shall be entitled to be away from the screen for a contiguous period of fifteen (15) minutes. Such fifteen (15) minute period may consist of an alternative job assignment or any break or lunch period otherwise authorized by this Agreement.
- C. Pregnant employees who work on VDT systems may request temporary reassignment within their job description or a comparable position, and be reassigned within two weeks of notification for the duration of the pregnancy. Such work assignment shall be determined by the CEO. This request must be in writing to the CEO with verification from the employee's physician.

ARTICLE 27 PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES

Section 1.

New employees hired into the bargaining unit shall be considered as probationary employees for the first seven (7) months of their continuous employment. Employees who are hired into the bargaining unit at less than full-time shall be deemed to be probationary employees until they have worked the equivalent of seven (7) months of full time equivalent continuous employment.

Section 2.

The purpose of the new hire probationary period is to provide for the evaluation of an employee over a period of seven (7) months. Should that period be interrupted to a significant degree, the new hire probationary period shall be extended to compensate for the interruption.

Section 3.

At the completion of the first three (3) months and again at the completion of the first five (5) months, each probationary employee shall be evaluated by his/her supervisor. Such evaluation shall be recorded in writing by the supervisor. The supervisor shall also indicate his/her recommendation for the retention or termination of such employee. Such employee shall receive a written copy of the supervisor's evaluation and recommendation and shall, upon written request submitted within seven (7) days of receipt, be entitled to meet with the supervisor to discuss the evaluation and recommendation prior to their transmittal to the CEO.

Section 4.

During the new hire probationary period, an employee may be disciplined or terminated without recourse to the grievance and arbitration procedures provided herein, expect discipline or discharge for lawful and protected Union activity.

Section 5.

An employee whose employment is severed with the College must serve an additional probationary period upon reemployment, whether in the same or a different job title.

っか

Section 6.

If, during the probationary period, an employee applies for and receives a lateral transfer, a promotion, or a lateral appointment, the probationary employee shall receive no credit towards satisfaction of the probationary period and shall serve a full probationary period in the new position unless the employee's new position is within the same division as the old position, and the employee serves under the same department head. Nothing contained in this Section shall deny an employee the right to a promotion pursuant to Article 19.

D. Co

ARTICLE 28 DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Section 1.

- A. The parties agree that corrective and disciplinary action, when imposed, shall be implemented in progressive stages from minor to severe. Such action is intended to be from a less severe to more severe corrective action in order to bring about the necessary change in work habits. An employee having successfully completed the required probationary period shall not be discharged; suspended or demoted for disciplinary reasons without just cause.
- B. The provisions of this Article shall not be applied in an arbitrary or capricious manner. However, in some circumstances, actions or omissions which have resulted or will result in harm to the institution, academic community or members thereof, may require imposition of severe sanctions in the first instance.
- C. Progressive disciplinary actions may include, but are not limited to oral reprimand, written reprimand, suspension with pay, suspension without pay, demotion and discharge.



ARTICLE 29 GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

The parties agree that they shall use the procedure set forth in this Article for the resolution of all disputes involving the application of this Agreement, unless such matters have been specifically excluded from these procedures.

Section 1. Definitions.

- A. <u>Grievant</u> shall mean an employee, group of employees, or the Union on behalf of the employee(s), as the case may be, who pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, seeks resolution of a grievance.
- B. <u>Grievance</u> shall mean an allegation by the grievant(s) or the Union that a specific provision or provisions of this Agreement has/have been breached in its application to him/her/them. A grievance shall mean a written statement reciting the event or occurrence on which the grievance is based, including the date when such breach is alleged to have occurred and the specific contractual provisions alleged to have been breached, and shall set forth the remedy requested. All grievances must be filed on the official Grievance Form attached as Appendix H.
- C. <u>Day</u> Except as otherwise provided in this Article, "day" shall mean a calendar day, exclusive of any Saturday, Sunday, holidays enumerated in Article 14 of this Agreement or duly authorized skeleton days.
- D. <u>Department Head</u> for the purpose of this Article, shall mean the person responsible for the department where said violation occurred.

Section 2. General Provisions.

- A. All grievances must be filed with the Chief Personnel Officer of the College.
- B. Failure of a grievant to comply with any of the provisions of this Article shall be deemed to be a waiver of his her right to seek resolution of the grievance under the terms of this Agreement. In determining whether there has been any such failure to comply with any of the provisions of this Article, time shall be deemed to be of the essence, and any failure of the grievant to comply with any of the time limits prescribed herein shall be deemed to be such failure to comply with the provisions of this Article; provided, however, that the time limits prescribed herein may be extended in any specific instance by mutual written agreement of the parties. If the Employer exceeds any time limit prescribed at any step in the grievance procedure, the grievant and/or the Union on behalf of the grievant(s) may assume that the grievance is denied and invoke the next step of the procedure, except, however, that only the Union may request impartial arbitration under Step V. In the event the Union or any employee elects to pursue any matter covered by this Agreement in any other forum the Employer shall have no obligation to process or continue

27

to process any grievance or arbitration proceedings pursuant to this Article or Article 28 herein, except that a matter involving a claim of anti-union animus may be concurrently processed at the Massachusetts Labor Relations Commission without negative effect on a grievance involving the same matter.

- C. Any member of the unit may initiate and pursue a grievance through the steps of the grievance procedure without intervention by any agent of the exclusive representative; provided, however, that the Union representative and/or Steward, whichever is appropriate, shall be notified of grievances filed by an employee on his/her own behalf and shall be afforded the opportunity to be present at any step of the grievance procedure and that any adjustment made shall not be inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. Any employee may request that the Union represent him/her at any Step of the grievance procedure. No other representation shall be permitted. The Union shall notify the Department Head, the Chief Personnel Officer, the CEO and the Chancellor, as the case may require, of the name and the business address of such Union representative at the time he/she is so authorized to represent the grievant. Reasonable substitution of Union representation is not to be considered a breach of this notice requirement.
- D. No individual may serve as the designee of the Chief Executive Officer of the Campus at Step III of the grievance procedure if such individual served as the Chief Personnel Officer at Step II of said grievance procedure.
- E. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level.
- F. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by either party to this Agreement against any unit member(s) initiating or participating in grievance.
- G. The Board shall establish a fund to be used to pay for costs associated with the administration and implementation of the mediation and dispute resolution process described in the Subsection E of Section 3 of this Article.

For the periods from July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002; July 1, 2002 to June 30, 2003; and July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2004; the employer shall provide to the Fund twelve dollars (\$12) per full-time equivalent employee on the payroll as of each said July 1.

Section 3. Procedures for the Filing of a Grievance.

A. Initial Filing:

A grievant shall institute the grievance procedure of this Article by filing with his/her Chief Personnel Officer during the term of this Agreement a written notice that a grievance exists. Such notice must be filed on the grievance form attached as Appendix H. No such notice may be filed more than ten (10) days from the date of the occurrence of the event or the date on which the unit member had reasonable knowledge of the event or conditions upon which the grievance is based.

2.74

Within three (3) days after receipt of the grievance, the Chief Personnel Officer shall decide whether to accept said grievance at Step II of the grievance procedure or to remand the grievance to the Step I.

If the Chief Personnel Officer decides to remand the grievance to Step I of the grievance procedure, then, within two (2) days after the conclusion of the three-day decision period, the Chief Personnel Officer shall notify the Department Head and the grievant of his/her decision to remand the grievance and shall transmit to the Department Head the grievance form and any other materials related to the grievance.

Notwithstanding the above, any grievance concerning the termination of the employment of a unit member shall be forwarded to Step III.

B. Step I: Department Head (remand only)

If a grievance is remanded to Step I of the grievance procedure by the Chief Personnel Officer, then, within five (5) days after receipt by the Department Head, said Department Head shall meet with the grievant and attempt to resolve the grievance. If, after such meeting, the grievant and Department Head fail to agree upon a resolution of the grievance, the Department Head shall render a written decision within ten days of the said meeting.

C. Step II: Chief Personnel Officer

- 4.

Within five (5) days after the expiration of the final time period provided for in Step I, a grievant may elect to proceed to Step II of the grievance procedure.

Within five (5)days of either the decision of the Chief Personnel Officer to retain jurisdiction of a grievance originally filed with said Chief Personnel Officer, or receipt of a Step II grievance, he/she shall arrange to meet with the grievant.

If the grievance is not resolved as a result of such meeting, then within ten (10) days of said meeting the Chief Personnel Officer shall respond in writing.

Said response shall include whether the grievance alleges that a specific provision of the Agreement has been breached, whether the grievance has been filed in a timely manner; and, whether the Agreement has been breached in application to the grievant.

D. Step III: Chief Executive Officer of the Campus or Designee.

If the grievant elects to proceed to this Step, then within seven (7) days of receipt of the Step II decision, he/she shall send a notice of his/her appeal to the CEO. The CEO shall meet or arrange to meet within (5) days with the grievant for review of the grievance (such arranged date not to delay the meeting more than fourteen (14) days) and shall render a written decision within ten (10) days of the date of the meeting. Although new violations may be identified at this level, no further issues or contract violations may be added subsequent to the close of the hearing at Step III.

2 M

E. Step IV. Chancellor of the Board of Higher Education.

If the grievant elects to proceed to this Step, then within ten (10) days of receipt of the Step III decision he/she shall send notice of his/her election to proceed to Step IV to the Chancellor or his designee, a copy of which shall be sent to the CEO of the College.

The Chancellor shall refer all such Step IV grievances received to the Board of Higher Education Grievance Review Committee (hereinafter The Review Committee). The Review Committee shall be comprised of five (5) members as follows: one member, who shall be the Chairperson of the Committee, shall be from the staff of the Board of Higher Education and shall be appointed by the Chancellor; one member shall be an excluded administrator from the Community Colleges who shall be appointed by the Chancellor; one member shall be an excluded administrator from the State Colleges who shall be appointed by the Chancellor; one member shall be from the staff of A.F.S.C.M.E., appointed by the Union; and, one member shall be a Union official appointed by the Union. Members of the Review Committee shall not have fixed terms and shall serve at the pleasure of the Chancellor or the Union, respectively.

The Review Committee shall be convened by the Chairperson and meet every other month, unless the members of the Review Committee mutually agree to meet more frequently. The Chairperson of the Review Committee shall determine the location and both the starting and ending time of all such meetings.

The Chairperson of the Review Committee shall acknowledge receipt of all Step IV grievances filed with the Chancellor and shall notify the CEO of the College that a Step IV grievance has been filed. Upon such notification, the CEO of the College shall forward a complete copy of the grievance record to the Chancellor. A notice of the date and time upon which a grievance will be reviewed by the Review Committee shall be sent in writing to the grievant or his her representative and to the College at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the scheduled date of any such review.

If the grievant chooses to appear before the Review Committee, the grievant may be accompanied by one other individual whose presence is necessary to present the grievance or by a Union representative. If the grievant chooses not to appear before the Review Committee, the grievant must so notify the Chairperson of the Review Committee in writing at least ten (10) days prior to the scheduled date of such grievance review. Failure to notify the Chairperson in writing and timely shall be grounds for dismissal/denial of the grievance.

In the event that either the grievant and/or his/her representative(s) or the College and/or its representative(s) fails to appear before or cooperate with the Review Committee in the matter of any grievance before it, said Review Committee shall have the authority to resolve any such grievance. Such

27/6

authority is limited only to the extent that it has been specifically granted by law to either the College or the Board.

Subsequent to review of the grievance with the grievant and the College, the Review Committee shall meet to discuss the merits of the grievance. Unless otherwise stated the Review Committee shall complete their review of the merits of the grievance and make determinations regarding the grievance on the day upon which the Review Committee reviews the grievance with the grievant and the College.

Notwithstanding the above, the Review Committee shall not be required to render, and shall not normally render, a written decision upon any grievance reviewed. For a period of fifteen (15) days subsequent to the review by the Review Committee, efforts shall be made to resolve the grievance.

F. Step V. Arbitration.

21

Within twenty (20) days after the fifteen (15) day period for resolving the grievance at Step IV, arbitration of a grievance may be initiated subject to and in accordance with the following provisions:

- 1. The Union shall have the exclusive right to initiate arbitration of a grievance, the resolution of which heretofore has been sought by a member or members of the bargaining unit. If multiple members have filed non-selection grievances for the same position, the Union agrees to forward only one grievance to arbitration. The decision or award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the Union, the grievant(s) and the Board in accordance with the applicable provisions of state law.
- 2. The Union may initiate arbitration of a grievance only if the resolution of the grievance has been sought through all applicable steps of the Grievance Procedure and only if submission of the grievance to arbitration has been duly authorized by the Union. The Union shall give written notice to the Chancellor and CEO that it intends to submit a grievance to arbitration.
- 3. The Union and the Employer and or College shall select an arbitrator pursuant to normal American Arbitration Association procedures.
- 4. The arbitrator shall convene a hearing giving due regard to the necessity of the parties for time to prepare and the availability of witnesses, if any. The arbitrator shall give at least ten (10) days notice to the parties prior to the scheduled hearing date.
- 5. The Union, Employer and/or College shall have the right to be represented by counsel at any hearing convened by the arbitrator pursuant to the provisions of this Article. All proceedings before the arbitrator, including his her jurisdiction to inquire into any issue presented by the complaint and his her authority to render an award, shall be governed solely by the provisions of this Article.

Jec.

- 6. Within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of the hearing, the arbitrator shall determine:
 - a. Whether the Union and, where an employee or group of employees sought resolution of the grievance through the applicable Steps of this Article, such employee or group of employees, has complied with the procedures for initiating and pursuing a grievance as set forth in this Article;
 - b. Whether the complaint alleges an express breach of the Agreement;
 - c. Whether the arbitrator has jurisdiction to arbitrate; and,
 - d. Whether an express provision of this Agreement has been violated in its application to the grievant. The arbitrator shall render a decision in writing, shall state the reasons therefore, and shall promptly provide copies of the decision to the parties to the arbitration proceeding.

Anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding, in making a decision the arbitrator shall apply the express provisions of this Agreement and shall not alter, amend or extend, or revise any term or condition hereof.

The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on all parties to the arbitration proceeding and shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction.

7. In all arbitration proceedings, the arbitrator's fees and expenses shall be paid fifty percent (50%) by the Union and fifty percent (50%) by the appropriate College.

Section 4. System-wide Grievance.

- A. Whenever either the CEO of the College or the Union is of the opinion that the resolution of a grievance involves an interpretation of the terms of this Agreement and is of system wide applicability, either party may petition the Chancellor to treat such grievance as a system wide grievance.
- B. To initiate such proceedings the Union or the CEO shall within seven (7) days of the expiration of the final time period provided for in Step II, file the grievance with the Chancellor specifying therein the reasons why the grievance should be treated as a system wide grievance.
- C. The Chancellor shall, within fifteen (15) days of filing of such grievance, determine whether or not the grievance shall be treated as a system wide grievance.
- D. If the Chancellor accepts the complaint as a system wide grievance a hearing shall be held and within thirty (30) days of said hearing, he/she shall render a written decision.
- E. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the Chancellor's decision in a system wide grievance, arbitration may be initiated in accordance with Step V of this Article.

, 318

F. If the Chancellor declines to accept the grievance as a system wide grievance, the Union or grievant may, within seven (7) days following receipt of the Chancellor's decision, file the grievance at Step III of the grievance procedure at the College where such grievance is alleged to have occurred.

Section 5. Application.

-:4

The parties hereby agree that the provisions of Section 53 of Chapter 30 of the General Laws are, in their entirety, hereby rendered of no force and effect in their application to members of the bargaining unit.

Section 6. Admission, Grounds of Appeal and Collateral Consequences of a Grievance.

- A. <u>Admission</u> The resolution of a grievance by the Department Head, the Chief Personnel Officer, the CEO, the Chancellor, or any of their designees, as the case may be, shall not be deemed to be an admission by the Employer that the grievance has, for any other purpose or proceeding, standing as a grievance or constitutes an admission of any violation or breach of the terms of this Agreement, or is recognizable or justifiable according to any applicable provisions of the laws of the Commonwealth.
- B. <u>Grounds of Appeal</u> The Employer and the Union shall have the right to appeal any final decision of the arbitrator pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 150E, Section 8, and Chapter 150C, Section 10, 11 and 12 of the General Laws.
- C. Collateral Consequences of a Grievance The fact that a grievance is alleged by a member of the bargaining unit, regardless of the ultimate disposition thereof, shall not be recorded in the Official Personnel File of such member; nor shall such fact be used in making any recommendation for the job placement of such member; nor shall such member or any other member or members who participate in any way in the grievance procedure be subjected to any action by the CEO whether disciplinary or otherwise, for having processed such grievance; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall derogate from the right of the CEO to take any action that might be authorized or required to be taken to give effect to the resolution of any grievance.

27/

ARTICLE 30 OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FILES

Section 1.

An employee shall have the right to inspect his/her Official Personnel File during regular business hours upon request and when necessary by appointment, and shall have a right to copy at his/her expense. The Union or a representative thereof, shall have access to an employee's Official Personnel File upon prior written authorization of such employee.

Section 2.

Whenever any evaluative material is inserted into the Official Personnel File or records of an employee, such employee shall be given a copy of such material within a reasonable time.

Section 3.

- A. The employee may challenge the accuracy or propriety of such material by filing a written statement of the challenge in the Official Personnel File.
- B. Grievances relative to materials in the Official Personnel File shall be limited to those materials which result in a negative action. Upon determination at any step of the grievance procedure that such material, or portion thereof, is either inaccurate or improperly placed in such employee's personnel records, such inaccurate material, or portion thereof shall be removed from the file, together with any of the employee's statements related thereto.

Section 4.

Upon written request of the employee, any negative material less than a suspension shall be removed from an employee's personnel record or file after three (3) years.

Upon written request of the employee, any negative material of suspension or greater shall be removed from an employee's personnel record or file after seven (7) years.

Section 5.

Whenever any individual(s) inspects the Official Personnel File of a unit member, except those who do so in the regular course of business, the date and name of the individual(s) shall be noted in the file.

2002

ARTICLE 31 EVALUATION OF EMPLOYEES

Section 1.

Performance evaluations are designed to serve the needs of both the employee and Employer. An organized program for employee performance evaluation will:

- A. Improve employee satisfaction and potentially reduce employee absenteeism, turnover, and grievances;
- B. Serve as an important motivational tool and improve the quality of job performance;
- C. Enhance the ability to achieve Affirmative Action goals through improved supervisor-employee communications;
- D. Base personnel actions on objective, accurate and fair performance appraisals; and.
- E. Monitor the performance of probationary employees on a timely basis.

Performance evaluation is the review and rating of all factors relevant to an employee's effectiveness on the job. It involves observation, guidance, training and open communication between the employee and supervisor. For it to be of significant benefit to both the individual employee and the Employer, it should be a continuous process.

Performance evaluation should be seen primarily as a developmental tool. Its purpose is to assess an employee's job-related strengths and weaknesses and develop his/her competence to the fullest. In a correctly executed evaluation, the supervisor and the employee work together to find the means by which the employee's ability can be strengthened and directed.

Section 2.

With the exception of a probationary employee who shall be evaluated at the completion of the first three (3) months of probationary service and again at the completion of the first five (5) months of probationary service, a performance evaluation of an employee shall be made annually by the supervisor within thirty (30) days prior or subsequent to the anniversary date of initial hire or appointment to present position.

Such evaluation will be recorded in writing on the form attached hereto, as Appendix G and shall be made on the basis of the following criteria:

- A. Quality and quantity of work;
- B. Work habits:
- C. Work attitudes:
- D. Working relationships with others; and.
- E. Supervisory ability (if employee supervises others).

V.

Section 3.

Each employee shall receive a written copy of his/her evaluation and shall be entitled to discuss the evaluation with his/her immediate supervisor and, if requested, with the supervisor of the next higher level than the immediate supervisor who has been assigned to review the performance evaluation. For the purpose of this Article, the term immediate supervisor shall mean an individual who is outside of the bargaining unit.

Section 4.

The Chief Personnel Officer shall receive all evaluations from the immediate supervisors and shall retain such evaluations, together with any recommendations made on the basis of any such evaluation, and evidence or materials submitted in support of such evaluation, in the respective Official Personnel File of each employee.

Section 5.

Any evaluation so retained in respect of any employee may be reviewed by such employee in the office of the Chief Personnel Officer at any reasonable time upon prior written notice, or whenever otherwise mutually agreed upon by the Chief Personnel Officer and the employee. An employee shall have the right to file a written statement in response to any such evaluation.

Section 6.

- A. An employee may not grieve the substance of his/her evaluation, except where such evaluation results in a negative action.
- B. Employees may grieve the evaluation procedure, as set out in the preceding sections of this Article, to Step IV of the grievance procedure.

Section 7.

Any provision to the contrary notwithstanding, individuals must be evaluated on the Form attached as Appendix G in order to be eligible for and receive the salary increases due and payable on July 1, 2001; July 1, 2002; and, July 1, 2003.

To the extent that an additional evaluation is necessary or required, such evaluation shall not be deemed to alter or amend the normal sequence of evaluations otherwise set forth in the Agreement.

2.70

ARTICLE 32 LABOR/MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Section 1. Board Level.

There shall be established a Committee to be known as the Labor/Management Committee for the State and Community Colleges. The purpose of the Committee shall be to discuss matters of system-wide applicability, which are of mutual concern to the Board and the Union.

Each Committee shall be comprised of six (6) members; three (3) representing the Board and three (3) representing the Union. Such representatives shall be appointed respectively by the Vice Chancellor for Employee Relations of the Board and the Union. In addition, the Vice Chancellor for Employee Relations of the Board shall designate the chairperson for management and the Union shall designate the chairperson for the Union.

There shall be two meetings per year, unless mutually agreed otherwise, with the position of chairperson alternating between the Board and the Union. Both parties may submit items for the agenda to the chairperson at least two (2) weeks in advance of any scheduled meetings. The agenda shall be distributed one (1) week in advance.

It is understood that said Committee shall not discuss pending grievances and shall have no power to negotiate, alter, or amend the terms of this Agreement.

Section 2. Campus Level.

There shall be established a Committee at the campus level to be known as the Labor'Management Committee. Such Committee shall be comprised of six (6) members; three (3) representing the campus administration and three (3) representing the local Union. Such representatives shall be appointed respectively by the CEO and the local Union. In addition, the CEO shall designate the chairperson for the local campus administration and the local Union shall designate the chairperson for the Union. The purpose of said Committee shall be to discuss matters of mutual concern to the campus and local Union.

There shall be four (4) meetings per year, unless mutually agreed otherwise, with the position of chairperson alternating between the campus administration and the local Union. Both parties may submit items for the agenda to the chairperson at least two (2) weeks in advance of any scheduled Committee meetings. The agenda shall be distributed one (1) week in advance of any scheduled Committee meetings. It is understood that said Committee shall not discuss pending grievances and shall have no power to negotiate, alter or amend the terms of this Agreement.



ARTICLE 33 HUMAN RESOURCES/COMPENSATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Section 1.

All employees covered by the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be paid on a bi-weekly basis.

Section 2.

Salary payments shall be electronically forwarded directly to a bank account or accounts selected by the employee for receipt.

Section 3.

To ensure that any of the changes required by HR/CMS are introduced and implemented in the most effective manner, the Union agrees to support the Commonwealth's implementation and accepts such changes to business practices, procedures and functions as are necessary to achieve such implementation (e.g. the change to a bi-weekly payroll system).

Section 4.

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts will establish a Special Labor/ Management Committee made up of an equal number of Union representatives and management representatives. This Committee shall be the sole forum for the parties to discuss any issues of impact to the bargaining unit arising from the implementation of HR/CMS.

Section 5.

In the extraordinary event that the Union alleges that an employee can not comply with the agreement relative to electronic transfer due to severe hardship such as an inability to access a bank or financial institution during off hours or there is no ATM available within a reasonable geographic distance from an employees work site or home, the Union shall petition the Human Resource Division of the Commonwealth for a direct deposit Special Exemption, a copy of which shall be sent to the Board.

The Human Resources Division, in concert with the Officer of the State Comptroller shall review the request for the Direct Deposit Special Exemption filed by A.F.S.C.M.E. and will notify the Board and the Union of its finding. The parties agree that the provisions of this Article are not grievable or arbitrable.

2.74

ARTICLE 34 NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT

Section 1.

Neither the Union nor any employee shall engage in, induce, support, encourage, or condone a strike, work stoppage, slowdown or withholding of services of employees.

Section 2.

The Union shall exert its best efforts to prevent any violation of Section 1 of this Article and, if such action does occur, to exert its best efforts to terminate it.

Section 3.

The Employer agrees not to engage in the lockout of unit employees.

Right

ARTICLE 35 COST ITEMS AND APPROPRIATION BY THE GENERAL COURT

- A. The cost items contained in this Agreement are specifically subjected to additional, complete and identifiable appropriation by the General Court and shall not become effective unless the appropriation necessary to fully fund such cost items has been enacted in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 150E, Section 7 and allocated by the Governor to the Board, in which case the cost items shall be effective on the dates provided in this Agreement.
- B. All employees shall receive the benefit of the cost items of this Agreement in the cases where those cost items are effective for state-funded employees. In the case of Institute, Grant or Contract employees, support funds must be available in the specific institute, grant or contract budget for the fiscal year in which payment must be made.
- C. The Board shall make a request for the funding of this Agreement as required by Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 150E, Section 7. In the event that the additional specific, complete and identifiable funding in each year of this Agreement is not fully provided, the remaining cost items shall be returned to the parties for further bargaining.



ARTICLE 36 SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall in any manner conflict with or contravene any federal or state law, or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, such provisions shall be considered null and void and shall not be binding on the parties hereto. In such event, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the Employer agrees to reopen negotiations on said issue(s).

The provisions of this Article notwithstanding, the parties may, by mutual agreement, upon the request of one or both parties, reopen negotiations on the provisions of this Agreement prior to the expiration date as provided in Article 37.

. 72

ARTICLE 37 DURATION AND SIGNATURE PAGE

This Agreement shall be for the three (3) year period from July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2004 and terms contained herein shall become effective on the date of its execution by the parties unless otherwise specified. At the written request of either party, negotiations for a subsequent agreement will be commenced on or after March 1, 2004.

This Agreement will remain in full force and effect until a new Agreement is executed or an impasse in negotiations is reached.

Nothing herein shall derogate from the legal rights and duties of the respective parties relative to matters that impact mandatory subjects of collective bargaining.

WHEREFORE, cognizant of the covenants entered into on this 10th day of January, 2002, the Board of Higher Education and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-ClO hereby set their signs and seals hereunder.

On behalf of Local 1067 of Council 93

Of the American Federation of State.

County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO

On behalf of the Board of

Higher Education

Chancellor

Anthony Caso

Administrator, Council 93

Executive Director

Howard Fain

Principal Negotiator

Carleton H. LaPorte, Jr.

Director of Human Resources

Rocco F. Richardi

President, Local 1067

Peter H. Tsaffaras

Deputy Director of Human

Resources and Principal Negotiator

25

APPENDIX A

REQUEST FOR SUBSTITUTION OF SICK LEAVE

This form must be completed and submitted no later than ten (10) days after the date for which such substitution is requested.

would like to substitute the following, in lieu of sick time, for the purpose of calculating overtime compensation: Date absent: Month/Day	Name	Title
Date absent: Month/DayFrom:m tom Total hours worked: SUBSTITUTION REQUESTED: This represents my: A. Compensatory Time First B. Holiday Leave Second C. Personal Leave Third D. Vacation Leave Fourth* Fifth* Request for substitution this fiscal year. (*Satisfactory medical evidence must be attached.) Employee Signature Date To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:	would like to substitute the following	lowing, in lieu of sick time, for the purpose of calculating overtim
Total hours worked:		
A. Compensatory Time	Date absent: Month/Day	From:m tom
A. Compensatory Time First B. Holiday Leave Second C. Personal Leave Third D. Vacation Leave Fourth* Fifth* Request for substitution this fiscal year. (*Satisfactory medical evidence must be attached.) Employee Signature Date To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:	Total hours work	red:
B. Holiday Leave Second C. Personal Leave Third D. Vacation Leave Fourth* Fifth* Request for substitution this fiscal year. (*Satisfactory medical evidence must be attached.) Employee Signature Date To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:	SUBSTITUTION REQUESTEI	D: This represents my:
C. Personal Leave Third D. Vacation Leave Fourth* Request for substitution this fiscal year. (*Satisfactory medical evidence must be attached.) Employee Signature Date To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:	A. Compensatory Time	First
D. Vacation Leave Fourth*	B. Holiday Leave	Second
Fifth*	C. Personal Leave	Third
Request for substitution this fiscal year. (*Satisfactory medical evidence must be attached.) Employee Signature Date To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:	D. Vacation Leave	Fourth*
(*Satisfactory medical evidence must be attached.) Employee Signature Date To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:		Fifth*
Employee Signature To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:		
To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:		(*Satisfactory medical evidence must be attached.)
To be completed by the Chief Personnel Officer and returned to employee. Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:		
Date received by Chief Personnel Officer Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:	Employee Signature	Date
Decision: APPROVED for Hours of Substitution DISAPPROVED Reason:	To be completed by the Chief	Personnel Officer and returned to employee.
DISAPPROVEDReason:		
Signature, Chief Personnel Officer Date	DISAPPROVE	DReason:
Signature, Chief Personnel Officer Date		
	Signature, Chief Personnel Off	ficer Date

in-

APPENDIX B

REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF SICK LEAVE

To be completed by the employee and forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the College.

NAME	DATE
	JOB GRADE
	MENT AT THE COLLEGE
TOTAL NUMBER OF WORK	NG DAYS REQUESTED
FROM: MONTH	DAY
TO: MONTH	DAY
WORKING DAY'S OFF THE F	AYROLL PRIOR TO REQUESTED LEAVE
FROM: MONTH	DAY
	DAY
	m a physician indicating the nature of the illness and anticipated date of
return to full time duties.	
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE	DATE
To be c	ompleted by the CEO and returned to the Employee
DATE RECEIVED BY THE C	EO
DATE OF DECISION BY TH	E CEO
DECISION BY THE CEO:	APPROVED FORDAYS OF
	EXTENDED SICK LEAVE
1	DISAPPROVED
SIGNATURE OF CEO	DATE
ce: Campus Linion Official	

345

APPENDIX C-1 Schedule of Weekly Salary Rates As of June 30, 2001

JOB	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11	STEP 12
	1											
•	AC C3C3	C 258 11	\$364.10	\$370.19	\$376.40	\$382.72	\$389.14	\$395.70	\$402.36	\$409.16	\$417.35	\$425.70
- (43.40.64			\$376.59	\$382.79	\$389.11	\$395.55	\$402.09	\$408.76	\$415.54	\$423.86	\$432.34
7 (4500.01	#304:30 #340 E3		\$384.27	\$391.29	\$398.45	\$405.76	\$413.21	\$420.80	\$428.55	\$437.12	\$445.86
m	\$364.UT			6393.70	\$400.73	\$407.89	\$415.19	\$422.63	\$430.22	\$437.95	\$446.71	\$455.64
4	\$373.40			640132	\$408.95	\$416.73	\$424.68	\$432.78	\$441.06	\$449.51	\$458.50	\$467.67
ហ	\$379.34			\$414.02	\$421.66	\$429.44	\$437.38	\$445.48	\$453.74	\$462.17	\$471.41	\$480.84
9	\$392.00			\$425 44	\$433.76	\$442.29	\$451.00	\$459.90	\$468.98	\$478.25	\$487.82	\$497.57
7	\$401.36			6426 44	\$445.15	\$454.42	\$463.87	\$473.55	\$483.43	\$493.54	\$503.41	\$513.48
∞	\$410.12			6453.00	\$463.00	\$473.15	\$483.54	\$494.17	\$505.05	\$516.19	\$526.51	\$537.03
6	\$474.68			6470.36	\$480.93	\$491.75	\$502.84	\$514.18	\$526.40	\$539.01	\$549.79	\$560.78
10	\$440.11		\$460.03	6487.51	\$499.06	\$510.92	\$523.49	\$536.70	\$550.24	\$564.13	\$575.41	\$586.92
1	\$454.51			\$508.07	\$520.48	\$533.73	\$547.30	\$561.21	\$575.49	\$590.12	\$601.92	\$613.95
12	\$473.35			40.000	£549.91	\$563.94	\$578.31	\$593.06	\$608.17	\$623.68	\$636.15	\$648.87
13	\$498.33			3000.40	6570 AS	\$596.16	\$613.15	\$630.62	\$648.60	\$667.08	\$680.42	\$694.03
14	\$518.02			\$563.56	664443	\$629.10	\$647.61	\$666.67	\$686.29	\$706.49	\$720.63	\$735.04
15	\$544.18	\$560.20		5593.07	2011:12	* 6666 35	\$686.63	\$707.53	\$729.07	\$751.25	\$766.28	\$781.60
16	\$573.60	\$591.07		\$627.58	10.040.04	£704 63	\$725.69	\$747.37	\$769.72	\$792.72	\$808.58	\$824.76
17	\$608.17	\$626.35		\$664.34	\$554.13 4749.27	\$740.09	\$762.56	\$785.71	\$809.56	\$834.15	\$850.84	\$867.86
18	\$637.28			\$697.12	\$7.10.47 6756 43	\$779.65	\$803.60	\$828.27	\$853.69	\$879.91	\$897.51	\$915.46
19	\$670.26			\$733.90	#100.40	CR19.15	\$843.80	\$869.19	\$895.37	\$922.31	\$940.75	\$959.56
20	\$706.28	3 \$727.53		\$771.98	07.08/6	CB 50 10	\$885.46	\$912.52	\$940.41	\$969.16	\$988.54	\$1,008.31
21	\$739.10	\$761.69		\$808.98	\$833.70 0041 40		\$930.54	\$959.17	\$988.69	\$1,019.11	\$1,039.50	\$1,060.29
22	\$775.79	9 \$799.66		\$849.63	58/5./0		\$974.55	\$1,003,92	\$1,034.17	\$1,065.33	\$1,086.64	\$1,108.37
23	\$815.52	2 \$840.09		\$891.49	8970.55		\$4.049.01	\$1,049.80	\$1,081.51	\$1,114.16	\$1,136.44	\$1,159.17
24	\$852.39			\$931.98	\$960.13	9	\$1,064.29	\$1,096.66		\$1,164.34	\$1,187.62	\$1,211.38
25	\$889.26				\$1,00£.72 \$4,040.12		\$1,104.66	\$1,138.42	\$1,173.23	\$1,209.09	\$1,233.28	\$1,257.94
26	\$922.09	9 \$950.28	8 \$979.33	7.600,T¢								

2018

-16-

APPENDIX C-2 Schedule of Weekly Salary Rates Effective July 1, 2001

JOB						20212	CTED 7	STEPA	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11	STEP 12
GROUP	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	SIEFO	SIEFO	200					
•	6.26.7 R4	6168 85	\$375.02	\$381.30	\$387.69	\$394.20	\$400.81	\$407.57	\$414.43	\$421.43	\$429.87	\$438.47
- r	10.2004	\$375.44	\$381.60	\$387.89	\$394.27	\$400.78	\$407.42	\$414.15	\$421.02	\$428.01	\$436.58	\$445.31
4 (*	\$374 Q3	\$381.75	\$388.70	\$395.80	\$403.03	\$410.40	\$417.93	\$425.61	\$433.42	\$441.41	\$450.23	\$459.24
n 4	5384.60	\$391.44	\$398.40	\$405.51	\$412.75	\$420.13	\$427.65	\$435.31	\$443.13	\$451.09	\$460.11	\$469.31
ı ır	\$390.72	\$398.12	\$405.66	\$413.36	\$421.22	\$429.23	\$437.42	\$445.76	\$454.29	\$463.00	\$472.26	\$481.70
n uc	\$403.76	\$411.18	\$418.74	\$426.44	\$434.31	\$442.32	\$450.50	\$458.84	\$467.35	\$476.04	\$485.55	\$495.27
2	\$413.40	\$421.49	\$429.74	\$438.17	\$446.77	\$455.56	\$464.53	\$473.70	\$483.05	\$492.60	\$502.45	\$512.50
- α	CA22 A2	\$431.15	\$440.08	\$449.19	\$458.50	\$468.05	\$477.79	\$487.76	\$497.93	\$508.35	\$518.51	\$528.88
	6427 42	6446 Q5	\$456.70	\$466.68	\$476.89	\$487.34	\$498.05	\$509.00	\$520.20	\$531.68	\$542.31	\$553.14
n (3437.42	8462 AG	\$420.00 \$473.83	\$484.47	\$495.36	\$506.50	\$517.93	\$529.61	\$542.19	\$555.18	\$566.28	\$577.60
2 ;	1400.51	3403.40	6400 52	\$502.14	\$514.03	\$526.25	\$539.19	\$552.80	\$566.75	\$581.05	\$592.67	\$604.53
Ε;	3400.13	6400 48	\$534.40	\$523.31	\$536.09	\$549.74	\$563.72	\$578.05	\$592.75	\$607.82	\$619.98	\$632.37
ZL :	\$467.55	0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	0.00	¢452.34	\$566.41	\$580.86	\$595.66	\$610.85	\$626.42	\$642.39	\$655.23	\$668.34
13	\$513.28	\$525.59	\$330.00	00000	\$597.04	\$614.04	\$631.54	\$649.54	\$668.06	\$687.09	\$700.83	\$714.85
14	\$533.56	\$548.76	\$564.40	\$300.43	CE29 45	\$647.97	\$667.04	\$686.67	\$706.88	\$727.68	\$742.25	\$757.09
15	\$560.51	\$577.01	\$593.98	\$611.40	2000	CEBE 34	\$707.23	\$728.76	\$750.94	\$773.79	\$789.27	\$805.05
16	\$590.81	\$608.80	\$627.31	\$646.41	\$0000°U	#000.34 #736 77	\$747.46	\$769.79	\$792.81	\$816.50	\$832.84	\$849.50
17	\$626.42	\$645.14	\$664.40	\$684.27	\$704.72	4762.77	\$785 44	\$809.28	\$833,85	\$859.17	\$876.37	\$893.90
18	\$656.40	\$676.33	\$696.86	\$718.03	\$739.62	\$102.63	CR27 74	\$853.12	\$879.30	\$906.31	\$924.44	\$942.92
19	\$690.37	\$711.57	\$733.40	\$755.92	\$1.811\$	400000	**************************************	\$895.27	\$922.23	\$949.98	\$968.97	\$988.35
20	\$727.47	\$749.36	\$771.91	\$795.14	\$819.06	\$843.12	*042.02	00 000	\$968.62	\$998.23	\$1,018.20	\$1,038.56
21	\$761.27	\$784.54	\$808.53	\$833.25	\$858.71	5884.97	4012.02 4048 46	\$92355 \$987 95	\$4.018.35	\$1.049.68	\$1,070.69	\$1,092.10
22	\$799.06	\$823.65	\$849.00	\$875.12	\$902.05	29.6264	44 000 40	41 034 04	\$1.065.20	\$1.097.29	\$1.119.24	\$1,141.62
23	\$839.99	\$865.29	\$891.37	\$918.23	\$945.90	59/4.41	#1,003.73	41,031.04	\$1,113.96	\$1,147,58	\$1,170.53	\$1,193.95
24	\$877.96	\$904.48	\$931.80	\$959.94	\$988.95	\$1,018.80	81,049.30	44 429 56	\$1.163.90	\$1,199.27	\$1,223.25	\$1,247.72
25	\$915.94	\$943.77	\$972.45	\$1,002.03	\$1,032.49	80.500,15	\$1,030.22	\$4.172.57	\$1,208.43	\$1,245.36	\$1,270.28	\$1,295.68
26	\$949.75	\$978.79	\$1,008.71	\$1,039.53	\$1,0/1.5	\$1,104.00			•			

Die J

APPENDIX C-3 Schedule of Weekly Salary Rates Effective July 1, 2002

	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11	STEP 12	STEP 13
\$378.07 \$	₩	\$384.40	\$390.83	\$397.38	\$404.06	\$410.83	\$417.76	\$424.79	\$431.97	\$440.62	\$449.43	\$458.42
	↔	\$391.14	\$397 58	\$404.13	\$410.80	\$417.60	\$424.51	\$431.55	\$438.71	\$447.49	\$456.44	\$465.57
	0,	\$398 42	\$405.69	\$413.10	\$420.66	\$428.38	\$436.25	\$444.26	\$452.44	\$461.49	\$470.72	\$480.13
		\$408 36	\$415.65	\$423 07	\$430.63	\$438.34	\$446.19	\$454.20	\$462,37	\$471.61	\$481.04	\$490.66
\$408.07		\$415.80	\$423.69	\$431.75	\$439.96	\$448.36	\$456.91	\$465.65	\$474.57	\$484.06	\$493.74	\$503.62
\$42146		\$429.20	\$437.10	\$445.17	\$453.38	\$461.76	\$470.32	\$479.04	\$487.94	\$497.69	\$507.65	\$517.80
\$432.02		\$440.48	\$449.13	\$457.94	\$466.95	\$476.14	\$485.54	\$495.13	\$504.91	\$515.02	\$525,31	\$535.82
\$44193		\$451.08	\$460.42	\$469.97	\$479.75	\$489.73	\$499.95	\$510.38	\$521.05	\$531.48	\$542.11	\$552.95
\$458.12		\$468.12	\$478.35	\$488.81	\$499.53	\$510.50	\$521.72	\$533.21	\$544.97	\$555.86	\$566.97	\$578.31
\$475 05		\$485.68	\$496.58	\$507.74	\$519.17	\$530.87	\$542.85	\$555.75	\$569.06	\$580.44	\$592.04	\$603.88
\$491.18		\$502.78	\$514.69	\$526.88	\$539.40	\$552.67	\$566.62	\$580.92	\$595.58	\$607.49	\$619.64	\$632.03
\$511.66		\$523.87	\$536.39	\$549 50	\$563.49	\$577.81	\$592.50	\$607.57	\$623.02	\$635.48	\$648.18	\$661.14
\$538.73		\$552.06	\$566.15	\$580.57	\$595,38	\$610,55	\$626.12	\$642,08	\$658.45	\$671,62	\$685.04	\$698.75
\$562.48		\$578.51	\$595.00	\$611.97	\$629.40	\$647.33	\$665,78	\$684.76	\$704.27	\$718.35	\$732.72	\$747.38
\$59143		\$608 83	\$626.77	\$645,19	\$664.17	\$683.71	\$703.84	\$724.55	\$745.88	\$760.81	\$776.02	\$791.54
\$624 D2		\$642.99	\$662.57	\$682.72	\$703.50	\$724.91	\$746.97	\$769.72	\$793.13	\$809.00	\$825,17	\$841.68
\$661.27		\$681.01	\$701.38	\$722.33	\$743.91	\$766.15	\$789.04	\$812.63	\$836.91	\$853.66	\$870.74	\$888.16
\$503.24		\$71428	\$735.98	\$758.31	\$781,35	\$805.07	\$829.51	\$854.69	\$880.65	\$898.27	\$916.24	\$934.57
470004		475174	\$77481	\$798.60	\$823.12	\$848.40	\$874.45	\$901.28	\$928.96	\$947.55	\$966.50	\$985.83
000000		470121	\$815.02	\$839.53	\$864.82	\$890.84	\$917.65	\$945.29	\$973.73	\$993.20	\$1,013.06	\$1,033.32
\$7007A		4000 74	\$854 OB	\$880.18	\$907.09	\$934.82	\$963.39	\$992.84	\$1,023.19	\$1,043.65	\$1,064.52	\$1,085.81
\$804.15		41:0700	900100	£924 60	\$953.07	\$982.42	\$1,012.64	\$1,043.81	\$1,075.93	\$1,097.45	\$1,119.40	\$1,141.79
\$844.24		\$8/0.22	\$697.00	4324.00	\$008 77	\$1 028 88	\$1,059.89	\$1.091.82	\$1,124.72	\$1,147.22	\$1,170.16	\$1,193.56
\$886.93		\$913.66	8941.19	6101369	\$1.044.27	\$1 075.82	\$1,108.33	\$1.141.80	\$1,176.27	\$1,199.80	\$1,223.79	\$1,248.27
\$927.10		802208	8983.94	01010	61,014.2	£1 123 62	\$1 157 80	\$1 193 00	\$1 229.25	\$1,253.83	\$1,278,91	\$1,304.49
\$967.36		\$996.77	\$1,027.08	\$1,056.30	91,030.40	41 166 24	61.701.80	£1 238 64	\$1 276 50	\$1302.04	\$1328.07	\$1,354,63
\$1,003.26		\$1,033.93	\$1,065.52	\$1,098.11	\$1,131.66	\$1,100,24	60.102,14	£0.007,1 &	9 9			

1.7

・ルニ

-63-

APPENDIX C-4 Schedule of Weekly Salary Rates Effective July 1, 2003

CTEP 1,		\$481.6	\$489.1	\$504.4	\$515,4	\$529.	\$544.(\$562.5	\$580.9	\$607	\$634.	\$664.1	\$694.1	\$734	\$785	6031	200	\$884.	\$933.	\$981	\$1,035.	\$1,085.	\$1,140.	\$1,199.	\$1,253.	\$1,311.	\$1,370.	\$1,423.	
CTEO 13	51 7316	\$472.17	\$479.54	\$494.53	\$505,38	\$518.73	\$533.33	\$551,89	\$569.54	\$595,66	\$622.00	\$650.99	\$680.98	\$71971	4760 BD	90.46.00	0010.23	\$866.93	\$914.80	\$962.61	\$1,015.40	\$1,064.32	\$1,118,39	\$1,176,04	\$1,229.37	\$1,285.72	\$1,343.63	\$1,395.27	
CTED 43	4	\$462.92	\$470.14	\$484,84	\$495.47	\$508.55	\$522.88	\$541.07	\$558.37	\$583.98	\$609.80	\$638.23	\$667.62	4705.60	675470	67.00.70	05.8874	\$849.93	\$896.86	\$943.73	\$995.49	\$1,043.45	\$1,096.46	\$1,152,98	\$1,205.27	\$1,260.51	\$1,317.28	\$1,367.91	
0.115.0.11	0 0 0	\$453.84	\$460.91	\$475,33	\$485.76	\$498.58	\$512.62	\$530.47	\$547.42	\$572.54	\$597.85	\$625.71	\$654.54	¢601.76	672000	0.000.00	\$783,03	\$833.27	\$879.27	\$925.22	\$975.97	\$1,022.99	\$1,074.96	\$1,130,38	\$1,181,64	\$1,235,79	\$1.291.44	\$1,341,10	
OTED 40	SIER	\$444.93	\$451.87	\$466.01	\$476.24	\$488.81	\$502.57	\$520.06	\$536.69	\$561.32	\$586.13	\$613.45	\$641.71	6670 20	#0705.20 #305.40	04/22/40	\$768.25	\$816.93	\$862.02	\$907.07	\$956,83	\$1,002.94	\$1,053.89	\$1 108.20	\$1.158.46	\$1211.56	\$1.266.13	\$1,314.79)
1	SIEPS	\$437,54	\$444.49	\$457.59	\$467.83	\$479.62	\$493.41	\$509.98	\$525.69	\$549.20	\$572.42	#50834	40.000 a	90633,00	\$001.34 \$00.00	\$705.30	\$746.29	\$792.81	\$837.01	\$880.33	\$928.32	\$973,65	\$1 022.62	\$1 075 12	\$1 124 58	\$1 176 06	\$122879	\$1275.80	
0	SIEPS	\$430.29	\$437.24	444033	\$45958	\$470.61	£484 42	\$500.11	\$514 Q5	453737	4550 13	#555.13 6 F 6 2 6 3	46.40.02	\$010.27	6044.91	\$685.75	\$724.95	\$769.38	\$812.71	\$854.40	\$900.68	\$945.18	\$992.29	\$1 043 02	41 001 69	£1 141 58	41 102 53	\$1 237 94	2.27.
	STEP 7	\$423.16	\$430.13	¢44123	645140	646181	6475.62	\$410.02 \$400.43	6400.40	6001.12 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	952001	#340.00 #FC0.0F	62.808.23	\$595.15	\$628.87	\$666.75	\$704,23	\$746.66	\$789.13	\$829.22	\$873.85	\$917.57	\$067.87	9101180	64,050,75	61,003.13	61,100.03	61,101,00	62.102,16
	STEP 6	\$416.18	4473-13	4 4 2 2 2 2 2 2	04435E	0440.00	9455	8400.90	3400.30	9434.13	10.4100	600400	\$555.59	\$580.39	\$613,24	\$648.28	\$684:10	\$724.60	\$76623	\$804 79	\$847.81	\$890.76	903933	0004.50	9801.00	03.020.13	00.070,14	\$1,123.20 #1,125.20	10.001,14
	STEP 5	\$40031	#400.01 #416.05							\$484.07	\$503.48	\$522.97	\$542.69	\$565.98	\$597.98	\$630.32	\$664.55	\$703.20	674400	670106	\$101.00 \$000 56	\$027.30 \$064.72	3004/12	\$906.08	\$952.34	\$998.63	\$1,044.09	\$1,090.05	\$1,131.05
	STEP 4	£402 55	040233	8408.01	\$417.86	\$428.12	\$436.40	\$450.21	\$462.60	\$474.24	\$492.70	\$511.48	\$530,13	\$552.49	\$583,13	\$612.85	\$645.57	9600 44	4722 42	3/22.42	\$758.00	\$796.00	\$839.47	\$879.70	\$923.91	\$969.43	\$1,013.46	\$1,057.89	\$1,097.48
	STEP 3	4205.02	#355,93 #400,00	\$402.88	\$41037	\$420.62	\$42827	\$442 08	\$453.69	\$464.61	\$482 16	\$500 25	\$517.86	\$539.59	\$568 62	\$595 86	\$627.09	000000	\$5,200	\$701.44	\$735.71	\$774.29	\$814.95	\$853.60	\$896,33	\$941.07	\$983.75	\$1,026.67	\$1,064.95
	STEP 2	000	5369.42	\$396.37	\$403.03	\$413.26	\$420.31	\$434,10	\$444.98	\$455.18	\$47187	\$489,30	\$505,91	\$527 01	\$554 89	\$579.36	\$600.17	0000017	\$642.74	\$681.11	\$714.03	\$751.23	\$791.13	\$828.28	\$869.57	\$913.53	\$954.91	\$996.38	\$1,033.36
	STEP 1		\$383.03	\$389,96	\$395.83	\$406.04	\$412,50	\$42627	\$43645	\$445.97	\$461:81	\$478 59	\$49424	\$51473	\$541.90	\$56331	GEO 1 7E	67.1866	\$623.75	\$661.34	\$692.99	\$728.86	\$768.02	\$803.71	\$843,61	\$886.81	\$926.91	\$967,00	\$1,002.70
JOB	GROUP	,	-	5	က	4	2	9	7	&	6	10	Ξ	12	<u>C.</u>	14	1 1 1	0	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26

Jyc,

APPENDIX D TEMPORARY WORK ASSIGNMENT REQUEST AND APPROVAL FORM

This form must be completed by the employee who has been assigned by his/her immediate supervisor to perform the duties of a higher rated position. Submit it to your immediate supervisor no later than the tenth working day of your performance of the duties of the higher rated position.

Name of Employee	Area of Assignment
Employee Number	Title of Present Position
Title of Higher Rated Position to which you have been assigned	Effective Date of Assignment
Signature of Employee	Date of Signature
MMEDIATE SUPERVISOR	
Name of Immediate Supervisor	Area of Responsibility
Date Form Received from Employee	Employee's Present Title

APPENDIX D (CON'T)

TEMPORARY WORK ASSIGNMENT REQUEST AND APPROVAL FORM

Previous Incumbent of Position		
Reasons for Assignment:		
Anticipated Duration of Assignment:		
Signature of Immediate Supervisor	Date of Signature	
Signature of Intermediate Supervisor/ Department Head	Date of Signature	
The Immediate Supervisor must forward the Officer after obtaining the Signature of the Intermediate		nnel
	ate Supervisor Department Fread.	
APPROVED DISAPPROVED (Circle One)		
Title of Higher Rated Position	Duration of Assignment	
Reasons for Approval Disapproval:		
Signature of Chief Personnel Officer cc: Employee, Immediate Supervisor, Intermediate	Date of Signature Supervisor	

J'rc,

APPENDIX E REQUEST TO APPEAL CLASSIFICATION OF POSITION

	TO:	Chief Personnel Officer	(Name and College)	
	FROM:	(Name and Title)		
	SUBJECT: A	ppeal of Position Classification	n	
	DATE:			
evalua		al the classification of my pos determine whether it is appro		sification audit and
	I am requestir	ng that my position be changed	1:	
From:		and Job Grade)	То:	(Title and Job Grade)

A

APPENDIX F CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBILITY FOR SYSTEMWIDE REMISSION FOR HIGHER EDUCATION EMPLOYEES

Before completing this form please read carefully the Board of Higher Education Systemwide tuition Remission policy for Higher Education Employees to determine if you, your spouse or your dependent child are eligible for tuition remission benefits. After completing the form you must have it signed by both your Department Head and the College's Chief Personnel Officer. You must then submit the form with your tuition bill to the College or University at which you, your spouse or your dependent child are enrolled.

EMPLOYEE'S NAME	EMPLOYEE'S COLLEGE
TITLE AND DEPARTMENT	UNION AFFILIATION
NAME OF INDIVIDUAL USING TUITION REMISSION	RELATIONSHIP TO EMPLOYEE SELF SPOUSE DEPENDENT CHILD NON-DEPENDENT CHILD* *State Colleges only
NAME OF COLLEGE/UNIVERSITY ATTI SEMESTER: FALL SPRING	
ENROLLMENT STATUS: FULL TIME _ EMPLOYMENT STATUS: FULL TIME _	PART TIME PART TIME
SIGNATURE OF EMPLOYEE	DATE
The individual named above is an employee requirements for system wide tuition remissi	
SIGNATURE OF EMPLOYEE'S HEAD PERSONNEL	SIGNATURE OF CHIEF DEPARTMENT OFFICER
DATE	DATE

This certificate is valid for 120 days after the date of signature by the Chief Personnel officer. A new certificate must be completed for each semester of study. This certificate is not transferable.

2.0

APPENDIX G PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FOR CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES

Evaluation S	latus:	Name		_ Gı	ade		_		_
3 month	probationary	State Title							
5 month	probationary	Working Title							
Annual		Department							
Other	(year)	Anniversary Date in C	ollege Servi	ce_					
Offiler		Anniversary Date in \							
PART A.		•							
DEFINITIO	ON FOR RATING TO BE	APPLIED:							
SUPERIOR:	Accomplished all goals or performed all tasks and excels in a substantial	FAIR:	Below avera but improvir Acceptable.						
ABOVE	manner.	UNSATISFACTORY:	Many goals tasks not per			d or n	nалу		
STANDARD:	Performs all tasks above departmental standards:	NOT ACCEPTABLE:	Not applicat	ole to	job.				
GOOD:	Average performance: meets departmental standards.	Specific examples must	be cued in the s	pace ;	prilvie	ded fo	r com	ments	
				SUPERIOR	ABOVE STANDARD	GOOD	FAIR	UNSATISFACTORY	NOT APPLICABLE
A.1. QUA	LITY AND QUANTITY (OF WORK:							
B. Amou C. Perfor D. Work E. Work	onstrates knowledge of job ant of work accomplished rms work with accuracy is neat and presentable is thorough								
	nizes work appropriately			<u> </u>		1			
	's Comments:					_			

() ()

		SUPERIOR	ABOVE STANDARD	GOOD	FAIR	UNSATISFACTORY	NOT APPLICABLE
A.2.	WORK HABITS						
Α.	Is regular in attendance at work						
В.	Observes established working hours						
C.	Completes work on time						
D.	Demonstrates the ability to work without						
	immediate supervision						
Ē.	Complies with departmental and College policies						
F.	Complies with instructions, rules and regulations,			-			
	including health and safety precautions.						
	WORL ATTITUDES						
A.3.	WORK ATTITUDES						
1	Endeavors to improve work techniques			1	1	1	1
A: B.	Accepts new ideas and procedures		+	+-	+	+	+
C.	Accepts new ideas and procedures Accepts constructive criticism and suggestions			-	-	+	+
				+	+	+	+-
D. E.	Accepts responsibility Exercises Judgement		+	+		+	+
	Adapts to emergency situations		+	+	-	+	+
F	Adapts to emergency situations						
Super	visor's Comments:						
Empl	oyee's Comments:						

873

		SUPERIOR	ABOVE STANDARD	GOOD	FAIR	UNSATISFACTORY	NOT APPLICABLE
A.	4. RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHERS						
A							
В							
C							
D	Observes established channels of communication						
Emplo	visor's Comments:						
	yee's Comments:						
A.3.	yee's Comments:						
A.3.	supervisory ability (where applicable):						
A.3.	yee's Comments: SUPERVISORY ABILITY (where applicable): Demonstrates leadership ability						
A.3.	yee's Comments: SUPERVISORY ABILITY (where applicable): Demonstrates leadership ability Makes timely decisions Is fair and impartial in relationship with subordinates Trains and instructs subordinates						
A.3. A. B. C. D.	SUPERVISORY ABILITY (where applicable): Demonstrates leadership ability Makes timely decisions Is fair and impartial in relationship with subordinates						

J.C.

	ATTENDIA_G	
Part B.		
OMMENTS OF DEPARTMENT	TAL SUPERVISOR WHO PERFORM	ED THIS
CVALUATION		
Recommendation:]	
Kethamendation		
Retention		
Dismissal		
No Action required Other		
	Signature and Title of Departmental Supervisor	Date
COMMENTS OF EMPLOYEE:		
COMMENTS OF EMPLOYEE.		

Part C.		
COMMENTS OF INTERMEDIATE S	UPERVISOR AND/OR PI	ERSONNEL OFFICER
VHO REVIEWED THIS EVALUATION		
VIIO REVIEWED TIMB E VIIDOTTA		
Recommendation:		
_ Retention		
Dismissal		
No Action required Other		
	Signature	Date
COMMENTS OF EMPLOYEE:		
SOMMENTS OF EMPEOTEE.		

2.7×2

APPENDIX H GRIEVANCE FORM

College	
Initially Filed On Step I Filed On	Grievant(s)
Step II Filed On	Title(s)
Step III Filed On	Filed on behalf of
Step IV Filed On	
Step V Filed On	
Written statement reciting the event or o	nent of Grievance occurrence upon which the alleged grievance is based. ribe what happened.)
	here Grievance Occurred
Give dat	e, day, time and location

6.5.8

APPENDIX H- continued

Specific Provision(s) Breached

Give contract Article Sec	tion and explanation if	necessary.
Relief or	Remedy Sought	
Signature of Grievant(s)		Date
Signature of Union Steward _		Date
Received by	at Stepo	n

رايده

APPENDIX I

Position Titles to be reallocated effective July 7, 2002

Asst. Instit. Chief Power Plant Engineer Grade A

Campus Police Officer I (before training)

Campus Police Officer I (after training)

Campus Police Officer II

EDP Programmer I

EDP Programmer II

EDP Programmer III

EDP Programmer IV

System Analyst I

System Analyst II

System Analyst III

System Analyst IV

Electrician I

Electrician II

Electronic Computer Operator I

Electronic Computer Operator II

First Class Power Plant Engineer

HVAC Mechanic I

HVAC Mechanic II

Institution Chief Power Plant Engineer Grade A

Institution Chief Power Plant Engineer Grade C

Institution Chief Power Plant Engineer Grade D

Lab Tech I

Lab Tech II

Maintenance Working Foreman

Painter I

Painter II

Plumber Steamfitter I

Plumber Steamfitter II

Second Class Power Plant Engineer

Steam Fireman 1

Steam Fireman II

Steam Fireman/Janitor I

Steam Fireman Janitor II

Telephone Operator I

Telephone Operator II

Third Class Power Plant Engineer

Typist I

Typist II

Utility Plant Operator

Qx6.9

MEMORANDUM OF INTERPRETATION – HOLIDAY PAY

It is the intention of the parties that this Memorandum of Interpretation serves as a guide to the implementation of the provisions of Article 14, Section 4. For the purpose of this Memorandum of Interpretation, only uniformed members of the campus police/safety/security department or employees whose duties require a watch in a power plant or similar facility are regularly scheduled to work holidays.

Whenever a holiday falls on a regularly scheduled work day, an employee who typically works on holidays (i.e., Public Safety & Power Plant) shall be compensated at two times his/her normal rate of pay. Employees who do not typically work on a holiday and who are required to work on a holiday shall be compensated at two and one-half times his/her normal rate of pay. In lieu of holiday pay an employee may request compensatory time off within 120 days. An employee may request an extension of up to forty-five (45) days, subject to approval by the CEO.

All overtime earned on a holiday shall be credited as follows: For each hour of overtime worked, the employee shall be compensated at one and one-half hours of overtime pay plus one hour of holiday pay. This will total two and one-half hours of pay for each hour of overtime worked on a holiday. It shall apply to any assigned overtime worked on a holiday, excluding Suffolk County holidays.

Example 1: A Storekeeper works Monday-Friday, 7:30 am – 4:00 pm as a normal work schedule. A holiday falls on Wednesday and the Storekeeper does not report to work. He/She has worked 32 hours for the week.

IKCU 32 HOU	12 101 111	WCCK.				
Regular		Holiday		OT		Total
(32 x 1)	+	(8 x 1)	-	()	=	40 hours

Example 2: A Public Safety Officer works Monday-Friday, 8 am = 4 pm as a normal work schedule. A holiday falls on Wednesday. The Public Safety Officer typically works on holidays.

ic. A nonuay	19112-001	Wednesday	1110 1 0	mire charecy.	S.11.561 (3)	
Regular		Holiday		OT		Total
(40 x 1)	99 -1	(8 x 1)		()	=	48 hours

Example 3. A Storekeeper works Monday-Friday, 7:30 am = 4:00 pm as a normal work schedule. A holiday falls on a Wednesday. The college needs the Storekeeper to work for eight (8) hours on Wednesday.

Regular Holiday OT Total (32×1) + (8×1.5) = 52 hours

Example 4. A Public Safety Officer works Thursday-Monday, 8 am – 4 pm as a normal work schedule. A holiday falls on a Wednesday. The college needs security coverage on the holiday for eight (8) hours.

Regular Holiday OT Total (40×1) - (8×1) - (8×1.5) = 60 hours

22

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WORKER'S COMPENSATION

Whereas the Board of Higher Education (hereinafter the "Board") and Local 1067 of Council 93 of the American Federation of State. County, and Municipal Employees (hereinafter the "Union") are parties to an Agreement (hereinafter the "Agreement") entered into on January 10, 2002; and

Whereas the Agreement is for the period from July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2004; and

Whereas the Agreement is of application to individuals in each of the Community and State Colleges (hereinafter the "College(s)"); and

Whereas the Board and the Union are desirous improving upon their existing harmonious relationship; Now.

THEREFORE, the Board and the Union do hereby agree as follows:

The Board and the Union recognize that, during the course of their negotiations, agreements were reached which provide that an individual may accumulate not more than six months of sick leave and not more than six months of vacation leave while on industrial accident leave.

The Board and the Union further recognize that it has been asserted by others not present at negotiations that the above agreement may violate the provisions of Chapter 152 of the Massachusetts General Laws.

Accordingly, the Board and the Union agree that, during the term of the Agreement, they will seek a legal opinion from the Department of Industrial Accidents as to the legality of the Agreement and, to the extent that said Agreement is permissible under Massachusetts General Laws, the Board and the Union will incorporate the above agreement into the contract.

WHEREFORE, cognizant of the covenants entered into on this 10th day of January, 2002, the parties hereby set their signs and seals hereunder.

On behalf of Local 1067 of

Council 93 of American

Lecaret rain

Federation of State, County

And Municipal Employees, AFL-ClO

On behalf of the Board of

Higher Education



SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT COVERING BARGAINING UNIT MEMBERS AT THE MASSACHUSETTS MARITIME ACADEMY

Section A.

Every person who, as a member of the bargaining unit, serves on any annual training cruise pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, shall, during any such cruise on which he/she does serve, be paid a stipend in the amount of Thirty Eight Dollars (\$38.00) for each day of the annual training cruise during which he/she does serve on such cruise. No stipend or portions thereof shall be part of the base salary rate of any such person, and every stipend or portion thereof paid to any such person in accordance with the provisions of this Supplemental Agreement shall be paid in addition and as a supplement to any salary or other compensation otherwise payable to such person pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

Section B.

Means shall be provided to allow unit members to draw up to one half (1/2) of the cruise stipend prior to commencement of the annual training cruise and to receive the remainder of the cruise stipend upon completion of the annual training cruise. Unit members terminated from the annual training cruise shall, within forty-five (45) days of the completion of the annual training cruise, reimburse the Commonwealth the amount of any stipend or part thereof paid in respect of any stipend received for which services were not rendered.

Section C.

Due to a forced change in work location (i.e., Mass. Maritime Academy), any transportation back to the original work location due to the death or life threatening illness of a spouse or child shall be compensated by the Massachusetts Maritime Academy. Such leave shall be granted at the sole discretion of the Master of the Ship and/or the CEO.

Section D.

. 72

When employees are on cruise status or shipyard status, they will be excluded from the Work Week. Work Schedule, and Safety Procedures Articles of this Agreement. Transportation to and from the shipyard and any other present arrangements between the bargaining unit members and the Massachusetts Maritime Academy will continue during the term of this Agreement.

0.4

A unit member assigned to the training ship who is assigned shipyard duty or is required to perform assigned duties associated with the acquisition of a training craft or vessel outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for more that fifteen (15) consecutive days shall begin to accrue compensatory time off at the rate of one day off for each three days of work.

Section E.

If an increase in cruise stipend or change in compensatory time off is granted any administrator assigned to the training ship in the three (3) year period from July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2004, the parties to this Agreement, upon the request of one or both of them, will reopen negotiations on the provisions of Section A of this Supplemental Agreement.



SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT COVERING PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL

SECTION 1 - JOB RELATED TRAINING

- A. Employees hired or promoted into public safety positions which require the successful completion of a job related training program, and who have entered such training program prior to the end of his/her probationary/trial period as established in Article 19, Section 4, or Article 27, Section 1, shall be covered by the following provisions:
 - 1. The probationary/trial period, as established in Article 19, Section 4, or Article 27, Section 1, shall continue until the completion of the designated training program or the time limits established above, whichever is greater.
 - 2. For employees who fail to successfully complete the designated training program, the CEO shall have five (5) working days to make a determination regarding the employee's status in accordance with Article 19 or Article 27.
- B. Within thirty (30) days following the ratification of this Agreement, the CEO shall discuss with the appropriate union official the type of training required for new public safety personnel. Prior to a change in the type of training required or where a College is instituting a required program, the CEO or designee shall notify the appropriate union official.
- C. Individuals hired or promoted into public safety positions shall be notified, prior to his her date of hire promotion, of the type of training required. For Campus Police Officer positions, the position posting for the vacant position shall indicate the type of training required by the College and the possible consequence of the failure to complete such training.

SECTION 2 - EMPLOYEE OBLIGATION AFTER TRAINING

Any provision of the Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the parties agree that any employee who is hired or promoted into a public safety position, and who is enrolled at the expense of the College in a job related training program shall, as a condition of employment, return to the service of the College for a period of service as set forth below for each month or portion thereof that the employee was enrolled in such job related training program. In default of the completion of such service, he she will refund to the College an amount equal to such proportion of the salary received by him/her while enrolled in such job related training program as the amount of service not actually rendered bears to the entire amount of service agreed to be rendered.

איר.

The period of service to be rendered by the employee enrolled in such a job related training program shall be as follows:

A. For a training program of eight (8) weeks duration or less there is no obligation for continued service to the College.

B. For a training program of greater than eight (8) weeks duration but of less time than the training program for Municipal Police Officers conducted by the Massachusetts Criminal Justice Training Council or equivalent sponsoring agency, an obligation of \$ 3,000 or eighteen (18) months of service to the College from the date of graduation from such training is required.

C. For a training program equivalent to that required for a Municipal Police Officer and conducted by the Massachusetts Criminal Justice Training Council or equivalent sponsoring agency, an obligation of \$ 4.000 or thirty-six (36) months of service to the College from the date of graduation from such training is required.

SECTION 3 - ANNUAL TRAINING

A. All training required by state law shall be provided at the full expense of the College. When the employee is required to attend training at a time at which he/she is not otherwise scheduled to work, said employee shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half his/her regular rate of pay for such training.

B. The employer agrees to make available materials that will permit employees to keep abreast of changes in laws and procedures.

C. Every campus police officer who is EMT certified will receive a yearly stipend of three hundred dollars (\$300). This stipend will be payable on the last payroll period in January subsequent to presentation of a valid certificate.

SECTION 4 - CLOTHING/EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE

A. Each College shall be responsible for furnishing all required clothing and/or equipment necessary for employment at the campus; or such College shall establish a clothing and equipment allowance for each uniformed public safety employee. Such allowance shall be Five Hundred Dollars (\$500) for fiscal year 2002: Six Hundred Dollars (\$600) for fiscal year 2003; and. Seven Hundred Dollars (\$700) for fiscal year 2004. Such allowance shall be per person and shall be for the purpose of purchasing clothing and equipment required by the campus. The provisions of this section shall not apply to the purchase of handguns.

2 VE

- Payment made in accordance with the above shall be to a designated vendor or to the employee upon presentation of proper receipts from a designated vendor.
- B. The College shall provide to each campus police officer who so requests a personal safety (bullet proof) vest. Such vest shall be purchased in the same manner as clothing and equipment. The Union recognizes that it may be necessary to phase in the initial purchase of vests over the term of the Agreement. Campus police officers who request that a personal safety (bullet proof) vest be provided to them shall sign a statement indicating that the wearing of any vest so provided is a term and condition of employment.

SECTION 5 - SPECIAL STATE POLICE

Where public safety personnel are warranted as Special State Police Officers in accordance with MGL Chapter 22C, Section 63, the costs of such appointments shall be borne by the College. Each such College will provide each Special State Police Officer with a photo identification card identifying such officer as a Campus/Special State Police Officer for that particular College.

SECTION 6 - SAFETY ISSUES

With respect to Article 26, Safety Procedures, the parties further agree as follows:

- A. Recognizing the need to maintain a safe environment, each Campus shall make reasonable efforts to fill vacancies in the public safety work force.
- B. At the request of either party, the Campus Labor/Management Committee shall meet to discuss the concerns of the public safety personnel. The parties also agree that concerns related to Campus security shall constitute a standing agenda item of the Campus Labor/Management Committee. At Labor/Management or Safety Committee meetings where public safety issues are to be raised, either party may invite a public safety employee to attend such a meeting.

SECTION 7 - IMMUNIZATION

The cost of immunization of public safety personnel against Hepatitis B shall be borne by the College up to a maximum of Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars (\$250.00) per individual. The CEO or his her designee shall make arrangements for such immunizations upon the written request of the individual. Such request shall include a stipulation that the College shall not be held responsible for adverse medical effects resulting from the immunization.

Sic.

SECTION 8 - OFF DUTY INJURIES

If, on College property (owned by or leased), an off duty public safety employee is injured while carrying out responsibilities as a public safety employee, such employee shall be considered to have been on duty for purposes of worker's compensation.

SECTION 9 - COURT APPEARANCES

The provisions of Article 10, Section 5 shall be applicable to public safety personnel required to appear in court.

SECTION 10 - PAID DETAIL

- A. For the purpose of this section, a detail shall mean a work assignment outside of normal working hours that is paid for by an outside agency or organization which is not an organization or department of the College.
- B. Employees who work paid details shall be compensated at the rate of time and a half (1 ½) of the maximum step rate of their grade level. There shall be a minimum of four (4) hours pay for each such paid detail.
- C. The College shall require a notice to the College of cancellation of a detail from the requester of the detail at least four (4) hours prior to the time the detail is scheduled to begin. If the requester of the detail fails to notify the College within the above specified limit, any officer assigned to that detail shall be entitled to four (4) hours pay at the overtime rate.

SECTION 11

The College agrees that upon the request of the Union, the parties shall meet to discuss and resolve public safety concerns and issues at the campus. Among these issues may be recruitment, retention and safety of personnel assigned to the Public Safety Department.

SECTION 12 - COMMUNICATIONS

The College shall endeavor to provide a radio or telephone equipment to a public safety employee who is working alone on a shift. Such equipment, when provided, shall be capable of allowing the employee to contact either the local police or other on campus personnel for assistance in an emergency situation.

200

Π
0
gilmon
U